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Introductory Section ;







December 30, 2013

To the Honorable Mayor, Distinguished Members of City Council
and the Citizens of Snellville, GA:

T am honored to hereby present the City of Snellville, GA’s third Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report. The report is as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013. Responsibility for both the accuracy
and the completeness and fairmess of the presentation, including all disclosures, resis with the
management of the City of Snellville. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, the
City of Snellville has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to
protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient refiable information
for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the objective
is to present reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from
material misstatement. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all
material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results
of operations of the various funds and component units of the City of Snellville. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City’s financial activities have been

included.

The City of Snellville’s financial statements have been audited by James L. Whitaker, P.C., a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the City of Snellville for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are
free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis
for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Snellville’s financial statements for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

Government Auditing Standards require the independent auditor to rei)ort not only on the fair presentation
of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with
legal requirements. This report is available under a separate cover.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report
and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The
MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the Government

Snellville was founded in 1874 and was incorporated in 1923. Snellville is focated in the southern portion
of Gwinnett County and is eighteen miles east of Atlanta. The City occupies 10.4 square miles and serves
a population of 19,026. The City of Snellville is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and
personal property located within its boundaries.

The City is a municipal corporation created under the laws of the state of Georgia and has its corporate
name as “City of Snellville, Georgia.” The affairs of the City are conducted by a mayor and a five-
member City Council. The mayor and the City Council members are elected at large. The mayor and
couricil members serve on a pari-time basis and are elected to staggered torms of four years. The council
is responsible for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, establishing tax rates, appointing committees
and hiring the City Manager and City Clerk . The City Manager oversees the day-to-day operations of the
City and ensures the smooth and efficient delivery of city services.

The City provides a full rangs of services including law enforcement; the construction and maintenance
of buildings, parks, streets, storm water drainage facilities, and other associated infrastructure; park and
recreational activities; elections; court system; building inspections; planning and zoning; recycling;
sanitation; and general administrative and support activities.

This report includes all funds of the City, as well as one component unit and one blended component unit.
The component unit, City of Speltville Downtown Development Authority, has been determined to meet
the criteria for inclusion in the City’s reporting entity. The Downtown Development Authority is
reported in a separate column in the financial statements to emphasize that it is a legally separate entity
and to differentiate its financial position from the City’s. The blended component unit, The Urban
Redevelopment Agency of Snellville (URA), was created to serve as a financing vehicle for certain
community development projects. Although it is legally separate from the City of Snellville, the URA is
reported as if it werc a part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to oversee and
participate in financing community development projects for the benefit of the City of Snellville.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Snellville’s financial planning and control. All
departments are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City Manager. The City Manager
uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget. This budget is then presented
to the City Council for review. The City Council is required to hold public hearings on the proposed
budget and to adopt a final budget no later than June 30, the close of the City of Snellville’s fiscal year.
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund and department. The City Manager may make transfers of
appropriations within a department.  Transfers of appropriations between departments and the
appropriation of additional funds, however, require the approval of the City Council. Budget-to actual
comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated
annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this comparison is presented as part of the basic
financial statements for the governmental funds. For other governmental funds, thig comparison is
presented in the Individual Fund Statements subsection of this report.
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Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of Snellville operates.

Local Economy

The city of Snellville, Georgia, was settled and has continued to grow around the confluence of two major
federal and state transportation arteries: U.S. Highway 78 and State Highway 124, Asa non-interstate
transportation hub, the City has aitracted a large amount of retail and commercial interest over the years
with the 124.Scenic Highway corridor now home to approximately 1.8 million square feet of retail,
restaurant and entertainment businesses.

Thousands of visitors are attracted daily to our shopping area and we have also made great strides in other
tourism and visitor related activities. Our June — September Farmers’ Market has been yoted the best in
the nation and operates every Saturday during the growing season. We also have six major
concerts/festivals throughout the year on Our Town Green which brings huge groups of visitors to town.

These visiting consumers serve as a great foundation for our local economy by keeping our commercial
tax base strong and supporting our City consumption fax line items. We have been encouraged lately
with an uptick in commercial business licenses (Oceupational Tax) and building permits. New restaurant
and office/retail space construction, which had been dormant for the past five years, is starting to develop
again and we fecl that is a true sign of an economy that is beginning to grow locally.

Another positive sign for our focal economic health is the growth of our largest employer: HCA/Eastside
Medical Center. 2013 saw Eastside open a new, cutting edge patient tower. The new tower includes
advanced robotic surgery technology in two new operating suites; one a hybrid suite for advanced testing
procedures which can quickly transform into a fully functioning OR. This new technology, including 48
specially designed surgical beds, will only serve to strengthen Snellville as a “destination” community
and add to our hospital’s existing 1200 employees which includes 450 physicians.

Major Initiatives

Real improvement in the local economy will be a spur to our major initiatives which have been scaled
back as has been the case in almost all local governments. Throughout the downturt, however, we have
made progress in several key areas over the past year.

Briscoe Park - The City’s main recreation facility, a true regional park attracting users from a multi-
county area, continues to undergo improvements and upgrades, This year we replaced badly needed
perimeter fencing, athletic field fencing, and tennis complex fencing. We made numerous drainage
improvements and painted/repaired six outdoor pavilions and patron restrooms. The filling of the long

vacant Park Supervisor position completes our preparation for planned major projects in 2013-14,
including new softball fields and added parking.

Town Center — A revitalized Downtown Development Authority has published a RFP secking developer
proposals for City owned property in our Town Center arca. That RFP has been very well received
(surely another sign of economic recovery) and this bodes well for our public/private sector partnership
hopes to create a City Center for Snellville.
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Another City appointed Board, the Urban Redevelopment Agency, was also reenergized this year and
served as the conduit for a very successful financial transaction. We refinanced outstanding COP debt
and reached almost 11% in present value savings. That is phenomenal when the rule of thumb is to
proceed if 3% savings can be attained. We lowered our paymenfs by $114,500 per year.

Capital Equipment

The City purchased its largest ever piece of Stormwater Department equipment with a new Vactor
Jet/Vac truck bought through the Georgia Municipal Association Lease Pool. This technology will
complete applicable stormwater work orders in 75% less time than current operations and will be a boon
to citizenry and Public Works Department.

LCI Project — As in all projects where multi-levels of government are involved, schedules and plans are
often delayed and that has certainly been the case with our local Livable Centers Initiative streetscape
project. The good news is that this year saw the clearing away of all administrative obstacles from the
project which was initiated almost ten years ago. With that accomplished, we then received Georgia DOT
reimbursement of over $1.1 miltion in ROW acquisition costs and a promise of certain project

commencement in 2013-14.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Snellville for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012. This was the second year
that the government has achieved this prestigious award, In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an casily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. The report must satisfy both generally accepted accouniing principles and

applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a pericd of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report countinues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The active involvement and professional support of James L. Whitaker, P.C. has been instrumental to the
prompt completion of the associated audit of this report. The cooperation of various clected officials and
appointed management has been invalnable. We express our appreciation to all those who contributed to
its preparation. Finally, we would like to thank the City Council for their leadership and support in
conducting the financial affairs of the City of Snellville in a responsible and progressive manneft.

Respectfully submitted,

Ja¥{ Burke, CPA

Controller
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Snellville, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financizal statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregaie remaining fund information of City of Snellville,
Georgia (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes 10 the financial statements, which colleciively

comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management 18 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility i to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolter General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance ahout whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain zudit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the anditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and air presentation of the fipancial statements in order 10 design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also inciudes evaluaiing the appropriateness of
accounting pelicies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly , in all material respecis, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component vnit, each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Speliville, Georgia, as of June 30, 2013 and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof, and the respestive budgetary comparison for the General Fund for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America.




Otiher Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and
Amnalysis on pages 3 through LI be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic {inancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our andit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do net provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Qther Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financizl statemenis that collectively comprise the City
of Snellville, Georgia®s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining nonmajor and individual fund financial
statements and budget schedules, and statistical \section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial stafements.

The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the individual fund financial statements and budgetary schedules are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and refate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial staiements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statement and certain additional procedures, including comparing and recencifing such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with anditing standards generally aceepted in the United States of
America. In our opinien, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the individual fund financial statements and
budgetary schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. -

The introdnctory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

We also have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the City of Snellville, Georgia’s basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2012, which are not presented with the
accompanying financial statements and we expressed unmodified opinions on the respective financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component 1nit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information. That audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Snellville, Georgia’s basic financial statements as a whole, The individval fund financial
statements, related to the 2012 financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting &nd other records used to prepare the 2012 basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of those basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 2012 individual fund financial
statements are fairly stated in ail material respects in relation to the basic financial statements from which they have been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 30, 2013 on our
consideration of City of Snellvills, Georgia’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of taws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other maiters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not o provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Snellville, Georgia’s internal control over financial

reporting and compliance. .
omar oA

Sneltville, Georgia
December 30, 2013




CITY OF SNELLVILLE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Tor Year Ended June 30,2013

As management of the City of Snellville, we offer readers of the City of Snellville’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Snellville for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. We

encourage readets to consider the information presented in this analysis with their review of the financial statements.

Financial Highlights

o The assets and deferred outflows of the City of Snellville exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most
recent fiscal year by $40,359,900 (Net position). Of this amount unrestricted net position of $5,899,960
may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors in accordance with
the City’s fund designation and fiscal policies.

e The City’s total net position increased by $2,886,880. This increase is due to an increase in net position
of $2,617,928 in governmental activities and an increase in business-type activities net position of
$268,952.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Snellville’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $9,946,285, an increase of $913,133 in comparison with the prior year. Of this
amount $5,050,783 is unassigned and available for spending, $3,779,912 is restricted for SPLOST
Capital Projects, $443,501 is testricted for other Capital Projects, $122,688 is restricted for Police
Activities, $110,981 is restricted for Tree Bank Projects, $18,340 is restricted for Economic
Development, $27,238 for LCI, $273,837 has been assigned to help fund the FY2014 budget and
$99,005 is a nonspendable for Prepaid Items and $20,000 has been assigned for redevelopment purposes.

o At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $5,050,783 or
47.9% of total General Fund revenues.

s The City of Snellville’s total debt obligations (including accrued compensated absences) decreased by
the net of $2,197,059. This decrease is due to the refunding of the City Hall Certificates of Participation
and their replacement with Revenue Bond issuance which reduced the City's debt obligation by
$794,000, repayment of §743 in capital lease obligations, 1,510,463 in Police Facilities Capital Lease,
$37,428 on the DDA Capital Lease, a reduction of $18,758 in termination benefits due, a net increase of
$1,493 in accrued compensated absences and the addition of $162,840 n a Capital Lease obligation
which will be liquidated by the Stormwater Management Fund.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction o the City of Snellville’s basic financial statements.
The City of Snellville’s basic financial statements are comprised of three comnponents: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of the City of Spellville’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The. Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise t0 the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses aré reported in this statement for some items
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.




Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover allora
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of
the City of Snellville include general government, public safety and courts, highways and streets, parks and recreation,
cconomic development, community development, and debt service. The business-type activities of the City are solid
waste management and recycling and Stormwater Management.

Fund financial statements. A fundisa grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of
nellville can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Flowever, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near term financing requivements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful
to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact
of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation t0 facilitate this
comparison between the two.

The City maintains five major governmental funds. The City’s major governmental funds are the General Fund, the
Urban Redevelopment Fund, the LCI Capital Project Fund, and the SPLOST I & 1I Capital Projects Funds. Information
is presented separately in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for all five major funds.

The City of Snellville adopts an annual budget for its General Fund. On page 18 of this report a budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with the FY 13 budget. A project length
budget is presented for the City Center Capital Project Fund, the Police Facilities Fund, SPLOST I & 1I Capital Projects
Funds and the LCI Fund in the supplementary information following the Basic Financial Staternents.

Proprietary funds. The City of Snellville maintains two proprietary funds. Enterprise funds (a component of
proprietary funds) are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. Information is presented separately in Statement of Net Position of the Solid Waste Management
Enterprise Fund and the Stormwater Management Enterprise Fund as well as the Statement of Revenues, Fxpenses and
Changes in Fund Net Position for each fund.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a fall understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statement and accompanying notes, this report also presends
certain other supplementary information, which consists of budget comparisons for all Govemnmental Funds’ revenues

and expendifures.
Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. At June 30,
2013, the City’s assets exceeded liahilities by $40,359,900.

The largest portion of the City’s met position (74.2%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. iand, buildings,
equipment, improvements, construction in progress and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that is still outstanding. The City uses capital assets to provide service to citizens; consequenily these assels arc not
available for future spending. Although the City's investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the tesources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Of the total net position, $4,502,660 (11.2%) is restricted for
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Capital Projects, Police Activities, Economic Development and Tree Bank Projects and $3,899,960 or {14.6%) is
unassigned and may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

City of Snellville's Net Position

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities Total
0B W 013 21 01 wn
Current and other assefs $10.662,691  § 11,136,333 $1,175,487 § L1H4918  S11838,178 $ 12,311,431
Capital assets $34,183,353 33,653,678 $§2,343.092 1,902,020 $36,526,443 35,555,098
Total assets $44,846,044 44790211 $3,518,379 3,076938  $48,364,623 47,867,149
Defered Outflows $60,346 - - - $60,346 -
Carrent ligbilities $575,522 618,318 $332,733 322,884 $908,255 941,202
Long-term fiabilities $6,993.974 9,287,540 $162,840 - $7,156,814 9,287,540
Total liabilities §7,569,496 9,905,838 $495,573 322,384 $8,065,069 10,228,742
Net Position: $37336,804 & 34884353 $3,023,006 § 2,754,054 $40,355,900 §  37,638407
Net investment in
capital assets §27,777,008 24844375 §2,180.232 1,902,020 $25,957,280 26,746,393
Restricied $4,502,660 3,623,404 - - $4,502,660 5,625,404
Unrestricted $5,057,206 4,414,574 $842,754 852,034 $5,899,960 5,266,608
Total nef position $37336804  § 34,884,353 §3,023,006 § 2754054 $40,359.900 § 17,638,407

As of June 30, 2013, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net position, both for the
government as a whole and for each individual fund.




City of Snellville's Change in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenues:
Program Revenues -
Charges for Services $3,240,594 § 2,842,624 $2,086,024 § 2,048,105 $5,546,847 § 4,890,729
Operating Grants and
Contributions $306,231 % 314,473 § - % - % 26,002 $ 314473
Capital Grants and
Contributions $2,999,096 § 3,991,328 § - % - $2,999,096 § 3,991,328
General Revenues -
Property Taxes $3,485,938 § 3,853,386 % - § - $3,485,938 % 3,853,386
Other Taxes $3,513,711 § 3,408,192 8 - 8 - $3,513,711 § 3,408,192
Intergovernmental - $ 1,331,008 § - 3 - % - % 1,331,008
Interest $5,204 $ 4,758 $761 % 623 $5,965 % 5,381
Other $24,535 $ 19,905 $ - 3 - $24,535 $ 19,905
Total Revenues $13,575,309 § 15,765,674 $2,086,785 § 2,048,728 £15,662,094 § 17.814,402
Expenses:
General Government $1,704,673 § 1,690,722 g - $ 1,690,722
Public Safety and Courts $5,064,707 § 4,966,217 $ - $ 4,966,217
Parks and Recreation $810,698 $ 754,667 $ - b 754,667
Highhways and Streets $1,855,443 $ 1,798,503 $ - $ 1,798,503
Economic Development $119,632 % 111,010 $ - $ 111,010
Community Development $540,743 $ 612,699 $ - $ 612,699
Interest on Long-term Debt $386,095 § 373,687 5 - $ 373,687
Solid Waste b - $2,069,324 § 2,020,034 $ 2,020,034
Stormwater b - $223919 § 129,055 $ 129,055
Total Expenses $10,481,991 § 10,307,503 $2,293.243 § 2,149,089 $12,775,214 $ 12,456,594
Tncrease (Decrease) in net position
before transfers $3,003,338 § 5,458,169 ($206,458) $  (100,361) $2.886,880 $ 5,357,80¢
Transfers ($475,410) § {509,862} $475,410 $ 509,862 $ - 8
Increase (Decrease) in Net Positiol $2,617,928 $ 4,948,307 $268,952 § 409,501 $2,886,880 § 5,357,80:
Net Position-Beginning of Year, $34,718,966 § 29,936,046 $2,754,052 § 2,344,553 $37.473,018 § 32,280,59
Adjusted (1)
Net Position-End of Year $37,336,894 % 34,884,353 $3,023,004 3 2,754,054 $40,359,808 $ 37,638,40

(1) Implementation of GASB Nos. 63 and 65 resulted in a prior period adjustment to

position of $165,387. See Note 9 of the financial statements.

the governmental activities net




Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $2,617,928 accounting for 91.3%
of the total growth in the NET POSITION. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

@

Occupational taxes continue to increase which we believe is a positive sign of entrepreneurial growth in
our community.

Property tax revenue dropped by 9.5% which is a continuing trend spurred on by a policy decision by the
Mayor and Coungcil to provide some tax relief for our property owners in this difficult economy. This
reduction in tax millage of one full mill over the last four years has been made possible by efficient
departmental operations and income from the Service Delivery Strategy settlement in 2012.

Intergovernmental revenue dropped in FY 13 due to the above mentioned SDS agreement which was the
large, one-time transfer in FY12. The annual transfer, which will continue for the eight year life of the
settlement, appears in and accounts for the substantial increase in the Public Safety and Courts Program

Revenue Line Item.

The Cily was active on the bond market this year and was able to refinance the COP’s debt on City Hall

construction and save $794,000 in long term debt obligations. This helped to take the pressure off the
General Fund as the debt is not funded through a millage.

Proceeds from voter approved county Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax totaled $2,858,060 in FY
13 and, in a successful November 2013 vote, the tax will now be extended through March 2017. These
proceeds are for capital expenditures only.

General Fund expenditures were less in FY 13 than FY 12 which was due to good oversight and
accountability. This occurred even though we were at full staff in all departments for most of the year
allowing for betler revenue and regulatory oversight.

The City’s LCI streetscape improvement project in the Town Center cleared all major obstacles toward
construction in FY 13. This administrative progress allowed the City to obtain right-of-way acquisition
cost reimbursement from the Georgia Department of Transportation of $1,103,970. Construction of the
project will begin n FY 14 and will be funded 80% by GDOT with 20% budgeted by the City.
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Business-type Activities: The Solid Waste Management Fund decreased the City’s net position by $5 1,500. This was
due to an operating loss for the year of $527,005. However, the General Fund transferred $475,410 to the Solid Waste
Management Fund to supplement operations. The city does not charge for residential sanitation services.

Revenues & Expenses
Solid Waste Management Fund
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Snellville used fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Snellville’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net 1ESOUTCEs
available for speading at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Snellville’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $9,946,285 an increase of $913,133 in comparison to the prior year. Of this amount, $3,050,783 (50.8%) is
unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance
is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed 1) to pay for police
activities ($122,688), 2) 2005 SPLOST ($566,708), 3) 2009 SPLOST ($3,213,204), 4) Tree Bank ($110,281), 5)
Economic Development ($18,340) and 6) Prepaid liems ($99,005). The city also has assigned fund balances for next
year’s budget of $273,837 and for redevelopment purposes of $20,000.

The general fund is the City’s chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, unrestricted fund balance of the
general fund was $5,050,783 while the total fund balance totaled $5,423,625. As a measure of the general fund’s
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund revenues.
Unassigned fund balance represents 47.9 % of the total general fund revenues, while total fund balance represents 51.4%

of that same amount.




During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the City’s general fund increased by $946,072. Revenues decreased
by 9.8%, and there was 2 decrease of .5% in expenditures resulting in an €XCess of tevenues over expenditures of
$1,925,833. The General Fund transferred $495,930 to the City Center Capital Projects Fund to finance capital
expenditures and debt service requirements related to construction of the City Administration Facilities. The General
Fund also transferred $475,410 to the Solid Waste Management Fund to finance the City’s recycle facilities and $20,000
to the URA to supplement operations.

The LCI Grant Capital Project Fund has a total fund balance of $27,238.

Since being passed by referendum in November 2004, the proceeds from the 2005 SPLOST have generated $1 1,688,581
for the City of Snellville’s share. The proceeds are t0 be used exclusively for the following purposes: 1) roads, including
stormwater, 2} cultural/historic/recreation and 3) public safety. The 2009 SPLOST has recognized $11,593,104 in
revenues since collection began in April 2009. These proceeds have been used for public safety improvemerris and
improvement to roads, streets and bridges.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail.

Net position of the Solid Waste fund at the end of the year was $1,349,076. The net position decreased during FY2013
which was due to a reduced General Fund transfer and the fact that the city does not charge for residential sanitation

services.

Net position of the Stormwater Management Fund at the end of the year was $1,673,930, of which $8536,693 was
invested in capital assets. The fund has unrestricted assets of $817,237, which is oxpected to be used for stormwater
management related capital expenditures.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The only significant variance between the final budget and the actual was a $288,808 surplus in Service Charges which
was dueto FY 2013 seimbursements from the county for E911 fees.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capita) assets. The City of Snellville’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as
of June 30, 2013 amounts 10 $36,526,445 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets inchades
land, buildings, improvements, automobiles and equipment, sidewalks, bridges and roads.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

$749,670 on transportation paving and maintenance projects.
$1,428,000 for improvements 1o Briscoe Park

$525,288 in Stormwater Infrastructure

144,000 on police vehicles.

e @ 9 @

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had $7,156,814 in outstanding debt consisting of
Revenue Bonds, capital lease obligations, accrued compensated absences and termination benefits, and land and

buildings secured the Revenue Bonds.

The City’s total debt has decreased by $2,197,059. This is atiributed to a refinancing on the COPS’s in favor of lower
debi Revenue Bonds, a payment of $1,510,463 on the Police Facilities Capital Lease, a payment of $743 in capital lease
obligations, a payment of $37,428 on the DDA capital lease and a $18,758 reduction m termination benefits and a
$1,493increac in Accrued Compensated Absences. The city also bought a stormwater jetvac truck with the proceeds
from a capital lease in the amount of $219,504. The city made principal payments o1 this lease of $56,664. Additional
information on the City’s Jong-term debt can be found in Note 10.
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Status of the City of Snellville Economy

Economic activity in Snellville during the year continued to reflect most national and regional trends. The City has 2
thriving retall sector consisting of approximately 2.7 million square feet of commercial retail with moderate commercial

growth.

The City also has a strong medical sector, with HICA Fastside Medical Center being its largest employer. HCA Eastside
employs over 1,200 total employees with a medical staff of over 500 physicians. They serve 11,000 annual inpatients,
tally 60,000 annual ED. visits, have over 75,000 annual outpatient visits, and perform more than 6100 surgeries
annually. They opened a new 80,000 square foot medical office building in 2011 and new patient care facilities followed
this year. The new tower will add 48 surgical beds and two new cutting edge surgical operating rooms.

A total of approximatety 1,500 businesses coniribute to the economic stability of the City. The value of our total taxable
property decreased slightly in 2013, but that was good news considering the precipitous drops in 2010 and 2011, All
figures are compiled by Gwinnett County’s Appraisal Office.

The Evermore Community Improvement District, an association of property owners along U.S. Highway 78 that
voluntarily taxes itself for corridor improvements, stretches from Snellville to Stone Mountain, About 16% of the CID is
within Snellville. The CID is currently completing significant transportation improvements along the Highway 78
corridor, much of it in Snellville and will help to revitalize the west end of the community and dress-up the Highway 78
approach into the City. The much needed continuous flow intersection improvement at the intersection US T8/GA 124 s
scheduled for ROW acquisition in FY 2014.

The Downtown Development Authority (DDA) has initiated a planning process to be a catalyst for the redevelopment of
the Snellville Oaks/Eastgate Place/Wisteria Village area near the center of town. Redevelopment of these first
generation strip centers into a modern neo-urban center will greatly enhance our Central Business District and help
create a sense of place that Snellville currently lacks. The City’s ten acre purchase of property will be a focal point of
this redevelopment effort. The DDA has issued a creative RIP to seek a developer/partner to enhance our chances of

SUCCess.

These redevelopment efforts go hand-in-hand with our “Towne Center @ Snellville” plans aimed at developing a
walkable, exciting City Center where people want to live, work and play.

In these challenging economic times, we in government have to be very conservative where taxing and spending are
conceraed, but we cannot ignore our long tern economic health. New investment on infrastructure must be made to
maintain our foundation/platform for long term improvement. 1 feel we in Snellville are making this investment na
wise progression and we must also do all we can to ativact private sector investment. Our City Center redevelopment
efforts and initiatives like the Wisteria property purchase and DDA Request for Proposals are important moves 10 secure
new private dollars and can only help our overall financial condition as we look toward the future.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Snellville’s finances, comply with finance-
related laws and regulations, and demonstrate the City’s commitment to public accountability. Questions concerning this
report or requests for additional information can e obtained by contacting the City at (770) 985-3500 or at the following
address:
City of Snellville
Finance Department
2342 Oak Road
Snellville, GA 30078
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013
Downtown
Governmental Business-Type Development
Activities Activities Total Authority
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,804,830 § 1,039,139 $ 5,843,969 $ 35,082
[nvestments 215,676 - 215,676 59,462
Receivables (net of allowance for '
uncollectibles)
Taxes 237,689 - 237,689 -
Fines 186,993 - 186,993 -
Intergovernmental 500,218 “ 500,218 -
Accounts 21,422 225,153 246,575 -
Prepaid Ttems 99,005 - 99,003 -
Due from other funds 88,805 {88,805) - -
Restricted Assets -
Cash 4,508,037 - 4,508,037 -
Investments 16 - 16 -
Nen-Depreciable Capital Assets 9,188,246 - 0,188,246 -
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 24,995,107 2,343,002 27,338,199 -
Due from primary government - - - 642,889
Total Asseis 44,846,044 3,518,579 48,364,623 738,033
Deferred Ouiflows
Deferred Charge From Refunding 60,346 - 60,346 -
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 24 906,390 3,518,579 48,424,969 738,033
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 255,838 317,111 572,949 -
Accrued Liabilities -
Wages 111,632 1,797 119,429 -
Customers and Developers Deposits 133,617 7,222 140,839 -
Police bonds and court fees 32,501 - 32,501 -
Interest 22,319 603 22,922 -
Unearned Revenues 19,615 - 19,615 -
Long-Term Liabilities -
Pue Within One Year 1,655,722 53,114 1,708,836 38,402
Pue In More Than One Year 5,338,252 109,726 5,447,978 604,487
Total Liabilities 7,569,496 495,573 8,065,069 642,889
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 27,777,028 2,180,252 29,957,280 -
Restricted for -
Capital Projects 4,250,651 - 4,250,651 -
Police Activities 122,688 - 122,688 -
Tree Bank 110,981 - 110,981 -
Economic Development 18,340 - 18,340 -
Unrestricted 5,057,206 842,754 5,899,960 95,144
Total Net Position $ 37,336,894 $ 3,023,006 $ 40,359,900 3 95,144

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Centributions
Governntental Activities:
General Government $ 1,704,673 % 91,749 & 220,229 § 286,017
Public Safety and Courts 5,064,707 2,763,436 83,452 1,161,680
Public Works 1,855,443 - - 493,098
Parks and Recreation 810,698 181,303 1,050 1,058,301
Economic Development 115,632 - 1,500 -
Community Development 540,743 204,106 - -
Interest on Long-Term Debt 386,075 - - -
Total Governmental Activities 10,481,971 3,240,594 306,231 2,999,096
Business-Type Activities
Solid Waste Management 1,838,082 1,437,701 - -
Recyeling 231,242 104,618 - -
Stormwater 223,919 543,705 - -
Total Business-Type Activities 2,293,243 2,086,024 - -
Total 12,775,214 5,326,618 306,231 2,999,096
Component Units:
Dovwntown Development Authority 3 23,524 8§ - 8 - $ -
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property
Franchise
Occupational
Insurance premium
Alcohol beverage
Hotel / Motel
Other
Intergovernmental
Toterest Earnings
Other
Total General Revenues
Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning of Year, Adjusted

Net Position - End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Changes in Net Position

Business- Powntown

Governmental Type Development
Activities Activities Total Aunthority
$  (1,106,678) $ - ¥ (1,1006,678) $ -
(1,056,139) - {1,056,139) -
(1,362,345) - (1,362,345) -
429,956 - 429,956 -
(118,132) - {118,132} -
(336,637) - (336,637} -
(386,075) - {386,075) -
(3,936,050) - (3,936,050} -

- {400,381) (400,381) -

- (126,624) (126,624) -

- 319,786 319,786 -

- (207,219) (207,219) -
{3,936,050) (207,219) (4,143,269) -

- - - (23,524)
3,485,938 - 3,485,938 -
1,247,976 - 1,247,976 -
840,630 - 840,630 -
908,818 - 908,818 -
325,267 - 325,267 -
106,627 - 106,627 -
84,393 - 84,393 -

5,204 761 5,965 23,700
24,535 - 24,535 -
7,029,388 761 7,030,149 23,700
{475,410) 475,410 - -
6,553,978 476,171 7,030,149 23,700
2,617,928 268,952 2,886,880 176
34,718,966 2,754,054 37,473,020 94,968

§ 37,336,894 3 3,023,006 $§ 40,359,900 $ 05,144




ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Invesiments

Receivables (net of allowance for

uncollectibles)

Taxes
Fines
Intergovernmental
Accounts

Due from other fnds

Prepaid Items

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities:
Salaries and wages
Deposits
Police bonds and court fees
Due to other funds
TUnearned Revenues

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Unavailable revenues

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable -

Prepaid items
Restricted -

Capital Projects

Police Services

Tree Bank

Economic Development
Assigned -

Redevelopment

Appropiration for 2014 budget
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
and Fund Balance

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013

LCI
URBAN GRANT SPLOST I
REDEVELOP- CAPITAL CAPITAL
GENERAL MENT PROJECTS PROJECTS
$ 4,804,830 S 20000 § 1,108,686 S 71
215,676 - - -
225,992 - . ]
186,993 - - -
22,620 - . -
21,422 - . _
516,878 - - 566,637
99,005 : - -
$ 6093416 § 20000 $ 1,108,686 $ 566,708
§ 228838  § - $ 1238 $ -
111,632 - - -
133,617 - - -
32,501 - - -
- - 1,080,210 -
506,588 - 1,081,448 -
163,203 - - -
99,005 - - -
. - 27,238 566,708
- 20,000 . -
273,837 - ] .
5,050,783 - . .
5,423,625 20,000 27,238 566,708
$ 6,093,416 $ 20,000 § 1,108686 § 566,708

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SPLOST 1I NON-MAJOR TOTAL
CAPITAL  GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
$ 2663521 S 715759 $ 9,312,867
- 16 215,692
- 11,697 237,689
. - 186,993
461,683 15,915 500,218
- - 21,422
88,000 - 1,171,515
- - 99,005
$ 3213204 § 743387 8 11,745,401
$ - $ 25762 $ 255,838
- - 111,632
- - 133,617
- - 32,501
- 2,500 1,082,710
- 19,615 19,615
- 47,877 1,635,913
- . 163,203
- - 99,005
3,213,204 443,501 4,250,651
- 122,688 122,688
- 110,981 110,981
y 18,340 18,340
- - 20,000
- - 273,837
- . 5,050,783
3,213,204 695,510 9,946,285
$ 3213204 § 743387  $ 11,745,401
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different because:

Total fund balances -- total governmental funds § 9,946,285

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 34,183,353

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-
period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds:
{Inavailable revenues 163,203

Debt discounts, premiums and related deferred items are considered
other financing uses in governmental funds in the year incurred
but are deferred items and are amortized over the life of the related debt
in the statement of net position:
Deferred charge from refunding 60,346

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Agcrued interest (22319
Revenue bonds (3,496,000)
Capital lease obligation (2,347,146)
Capital lease obligation - DDA (623,524)
Long-term portion of termination benefits (153,580)
Long-term portion of compensated absences (371,724)

Net position of governmental activities. § 37,336,894

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial siatements.
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REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Tree Bank Bonds
Investment incomse
Rental income
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Mumicipal Court
Public Safety
Public Works
Parks and Reereation
Tree Bank
Economic Development
Community Development
Capital:
General Government
Public Safety
Pubtic Works
Parks and Recreation
Community Development
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Issue costs on debt
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Debt issue
Payment to refunded debt agent
Transfers
Sale of capital assets

Total

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning of the year

Fund Balance - End of year

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

REDEVELOP-

GENERAL

URBAN

MENT

ICI
GRANT
CAPITAL
PROJECTS

SPLOST I
CAPITAL

PROJECTS

$ 6,930,535 $

176,123
431,066
988,472

1,834,775

4,587
78,370
91,974

A -

1,103,970
it

$

10,535,902

1,103,981

1,330,196
683,873
3,856,149
924,156
656,203

538,824

28,988
159,303
336,275
23,888
11,427

38,171
22,616

87,652

8,610,069

87,652

6,938

923,921

1,925,833

{87,652)

1,097,043

(923,710)

(991,340)
11,579

3,496,000
(3,408,348)
20,000

{979,761)

107,652

946,072
4,477,553

20,000

1,097,043

{(1,069,805)

(923,710)
1,490,418

$ 5,423,625 $

20,000

8 27,238

$

566,708

Ses accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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TOTAL

SPLOST 11 NON-MAJOR
CAPITAL COVERNMENTAL  GOVERNMENTAL
PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS

$ - $ 106,627 $ 7,037,162
- - ' 176,123

2,838,060 37,511 4,430,607

- - 988,472

- 103,145 1,939,920

2,109 607 7,525

- - 78,370

- - 91,974

2,860,169 249 890 14,750,153

- - 1,330,196

- - 683,873

- 14,354 3,870,503

- - 931,094

- - 656,203

- 2,675 2,675

- 119,632 119,632

- - 538,824

- - 28,988

- 87,830 247,133

413,395 - 749,670
527.346 - 1,475,155

- - 11,427

1,510,462 881,652 2,430,285
98,985 175,930 297,531
- - 87,652
2,550,188 1,282,073 13,460,841
309,981 (1,032,183) 1,289,312

- - 3,496,000
- - (3,408,348)
- 495,930 (475,410)

o - - 11,579
- 495,930 (376,179)

309,981 (536,253) 913,133
2,903,223 1,231,763 9,033,152

$ 3,213,204 $ 695,510 $ 9,946,285




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances -- total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is altocated over their
estimated usefiil lives and reported as depreciation expense:

Capital outlay
Depreciation

The net effect of other miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(ie., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net position. This is

the amount of net book value of assets disposed of during the current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. This is the difference
between the beginning and ending deferred revenue balances in the
current period.

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net
position. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term labilities in
the statement of net position:

Repayments
Proceeds

Bond premiums, discounts and related deferred items are considered deferred
costs in the statement of net position and are amortized over the life of the
related debt while they are considered other financing uses in governmental
funds in the year they are incurred:
Amortization

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
cxpenditures in governmental funds:

Change in the long term portion of accrued compensated absences
Change in the long term portion of termination benefits
Change in accrued interest

Change in net position of governmental activities.

The accompanying notes are ai integral part of these financial statements.
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913,133

1,649,346

(1,046,733)

(72,939)

{1,183,885)

5,838,633
(3,496,000)

(5,087)

(1,492)
18,758
5,094

2,617,928




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
REVENUES
Taxes 8 6,614,744 § 6,614,744 $ 6,930,535 8 315,791
Licenses and permits ‘ 272,500 272,500 176,123 (96,377)
Intergovernmental 333,000 333,000 431,066 93,066
Charges for services 699,664 699,664 088,472 288,808
Fines and forfeitures 1,800,000 1,800,000 1,834,775 34775
Investment income 2,000 2,000 4,587 2,587
Rental income 77,980 83,980 78,370 (3,610)
Miscellaneous 24,500 24,500 91,974 67,474
Total Revenues 0,824,388 9,830,388 10,535,902 705,514
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 1,435,434 1,395,434 1,330,196 65,238
Municipal Court 703,614 703,614 683,873 19,741
Public Safety 3,836,450 3,876,450 3,856,149 20,301
Public Works 978,045 078,045 624,156 53,889
Parks and Recreation 680,609 680,609 656,203 24,406
Community Development 600,408 600,408 538,824 61,584
Capitak:
General Government 60,000 60,000 28,988 31,012
Public Safety 159,000 159,000 159,303 (303)
Public Works 636,022 636,022 336,275 299,747
Parks and Recreation 23,100 23,100 23,888 (788)
Community Development 18,000 18,000 11,427 6,573
Debt Service:
Principal 36,000 36,000 38,171 (2,171)
Interest 24,041 24,041 22,616 1,425
Total Expenditures 9,190,723 9,190,723 8,610,069 580,654
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Qver Expenditures 633,665 639,665 1,925,833 1,286,168
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers (879,478) (971,003) {991,340 (20,337)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 6,000 6,000 11,579 5,579
Debt issue - - - : -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) {873,478} (965,003 (979,761) (14,758)
Net Change in Fund Balances (239,813) (325,338) 046,072 1,271,410
Fund Balance -
Beginning of year 4,477,553 4,477,553 4,477,553 -
End of year 5 4237740 § 4,152,215 § 5423625 0§ 1,271,410

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30,2013
SOLID
WASTE STORMWATER TOTAL
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash 5 121,797 3 917,342 % 1,039,139
Receivables '
Trade accounts 97,317 13,312 110,629
Unbilled sales 114,524 - 114,524
Prepaid items - - -
Total Current Assets 333,638 930,654 1,264,292
Property, plant and equipment:
Buildings 577,673 - 577,673
Machinery and equipment 227,846 228,089 455,933
Vehicles 21,118 - 21,118
Infrastructure - 229,663 829,663
Land improvements 1,188,251 - 1,188,251
2,014,888 1,057,752 3,072,640
[ess accumulated depreciation (691,329 (38,219) {729,548)
1,323,559 1,019,533 2,343,092
Total Assets 1,657,197 1,950,187 3,607,384
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 204,447 22.664 317,111
Customer deposits 7,222 - 7,222
Accrued liabilities -
Interest - 603 603
Payroll 6,452 1,345 7,797
Due to other funds - 88,805 88,805
Capital lease payable - 53,114 53,114
Total current liabilities (payable from current 308,121 166,531 474,652
Long-term obligations - 109,726 109,726
Total Liabilities 308,121 276,257 584,378
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,323,559 856,693 2,180,252
Unrestricted 25,547 817,237 842,754
Total Net Position $ 1,349,076 $ 1,673,930 3 3,023,006

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SOLID
WASTE STORMWATER TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for sexvices:
Solid waste $ 1,407,765 by - $ 1,407,763
Recycling 104,618 - 104,618
Stormwater utility - 536,259 536,259
Penalties 24,873 7,446 32,319
Miscellaneous 5,063 “ 5,063
Total Operating Revenues 1,542,319 343,705 2,086,024
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Purchases of product/service 1,784,998 - 1,784,998
Salaries and benefits 128,103 91,578 219,681
Contracted / purchased services 82,393 102,942 185,335
Supplies 7,651 2,960 10,611
Bad debt expense 7,800 - 7,800
Depreciation 58,379 25,836 84,215

Total Operating Expenses 2,069,324 223,316 2,292,640
Operating Income (Loss) {527,005) 320,389 (206,616}
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES):
Interest expense - (603) (603)
Interest revenue 95 6606 761
Net income (loss) before transfers
and capital contributions (526,910) 320,452 {206,438)
Transfers in 475,410 - 475,410
Capital contributions - - -
NET INCOME (51,500) 320,452 268,952
NET POSITION - BEGINNING 1,400,576 1,353,478 2,754,054
NET POSITION - ENDING $ 1,345,076 $ 1,673,930 3 3,023,006

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SOLID

WASTE STORMWATER TOTAL
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and users $ 1,554,450 $ 554,222 $ 2,108,672
Cash paid to suppliers ' (1,913,123) (113,904) (2,027,0277)
Cash paid to employees {104,979) (68,587) {173,566)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities (463,652) 371,731 (91,921)
Cash fiows from investing activities:

Interest received 95 666 762

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 96 666 762
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

Increase {decrease) in due to other funds - 89,088 89,088
Transters 475,410 - 475,410

Net Cash Provided by Non-capital

Financing Activities 475,410 89,088 564,498
Cash flows from capital financing activities:

Proceeds from debt issue - 219,504 219,504

Principal payments - (56,664) {36,664)

Purchase and construction of capital assets - (525,288) (525,288)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in)

Capital Financing Activities ‘ - (362,448) (362,448)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 11,854 99.037 110,391
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of Year 109,943 818,305 928,248
Cash and cash equivalents - End of Year $ 121,797 $ 917,342 $ 1,039,139

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Reconeiliation of Net Income to Net Cash Provided
By Operating Activities

SOLID
WASTE STORMWATER TOTAL
Operating income (loss) b (527,005) $ 320,389 $ (206,616)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided
by operating activities: _
Depreciation and amortization 58,379 25,836 84215
(Increase) decrease in recejvables 0,787 10,517 21,234
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items - - -
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable (5,08%) 13,644 8,555
Increase {decrease) in customer deposits 1,414 - 1,414
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (2,068) 1,345 (723)
Total Adjustments 63,353 51,342 114,695
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 3 (463,652) § 371,731 $ (91,921)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2813

 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A. Basis of Presentation

The City’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for
state and local govermments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). The more significant
accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City are discussed below.

B. The Reporting Entity

The City of Snellville, Georgia (the “City”) was incorporated in 1923 under the provisions of the State of
Georgia. A Mayor and City Council, composed of five members, govern and direct the legislative affairs of the
City. In a manner consistent with the principles and practices of a Council-Manager form of government, the
legislative policies and daily operations of the City are executed and/or administered by an appointed City
Manager. The City Manager is vested with the authority and responsibility to provide for effective and efficient
delivery of municipal services and to attend to the management of municipal affairs within legislative and legal
parameters established by federal, state and local laws and regulations. The City provides the following
services: police, highways and streets, sanitation, recycling, stormwater, parks and recreation, planning and
zoning, and general and administrative services. The City’s annual financial report includes the accounts of all
City operations and its component unit. Water, sewer, and fire protection services are provided by Gwinnett
County.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 14, as amended by GASB No. 61 defines
ihe reporting entity for determining which potential component units should be included in a primary
government’s financial statements. Inclusion is based on organization’s for which the primary government is
financially accountable. In addition, the primary government may determine, through exercise of management’s
professional judgment, that the inclusion of an organization that does not meet the financial accountability
criteria is necessary in order to prevent the reporting entity’s financial statements from being misleading. In
such instances, the organization should be included as a component unit. The criteria for determining financial
accountability includes appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of
the City to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits or to impose specific financial burdens on the City regardless of whether the organization has
a separate elected or appoinied governing board. Blended component units, although legally separate entities,
are, in substance part of the government’s operations and are reported with similar funds of the primary
government. The City reports the City of Snellville’s Downtown Development Authority as a component it

The Urban Redevelopment Agency of Snellville is considered a blended component unit of the City.

Discretely Presented Component Unit —

The component unit column in the Governmeni — Wide Financial Statements includes the financial data of City
of Snellville, Georgia Downtown Development Authority. This component unit is reported in a separate
column to emphasize that it is legally separatc from the City. The City of Snellville, Georgia Downtown
Development Authority was organized to develop and promote commerce, industry, and general welfare within
the City. The City appoints the Authority’s board members and reviews the annual budget. Funding of the
Authority is provided by the City’s General Fund and contributions from individuals and private companies.
Separate financial statements for the Authority are not issued. The Authority’s fiscal year is from January ! fo
December 31.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —( Continued)

1,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued):

B. The Reporting Entity — (Continued)

Blended Component Unit —

The Urban Redevelopment Agency of Snellville (URA) was created in 2010 by the City to serve as a financing
vehicle for certain community development projects. The URA is a legally separate organization governed yb a
board that is appointed by the mayor and city council of the City of Snellville. Although it is legally separate
from the City, the URA is reported as if it were a part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to
oversee and participate, if necessary, in financing commaunity development projects for the benefit of the City
and its citizens. Furthermore, the URA is included as a component unit as the URA has no ability to issue debt
or otherwise carry out its activities without the participation and agreement of the City or appropriation of funds
by the city council. The operations of the URA are included in the governmental activities of the goveriunent-
wide financial statements as a separate special revenue fund. Separale financial statements are not published for
the URA which follows the same accounting policies as the City of Snellville.

C. Basic Financial Statements—Government-Wide Statements

The City’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) and fund
financial statements (reporting the City’s major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements
categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type.

The government-wide Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the governmental and
business-type activities of the City at year end. The statement is presented on a consolidated basis and is
reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as
well as long-term debt and obligations. The City’s net position are reported in three parts—invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. The City first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each program or function of the City’s governmental activities and for business-type activities of
the City. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and
therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. The City does not allocate indirect cost. Program revenues
include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular prograrn, and interest earned
on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City, with certain limited exceptions. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each govermmental program

or business activity is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.

The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (property, sales or use taxes, interest
income, etc.). :

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in the City’s
net position resulting from the current year’s activities.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

D. Basic Financial Statements-Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each
fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comnprises its assets, liabilities,
reserves, fand equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Government resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by
which spending activities are controlled. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial
information of the City at this more detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise find financial
statements is on major funds. Each major fund is presenied in a separate column., Nonmajor funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column. The City considers the General Fund the Urban Redevelopment
Fund and the LCI Grant Fund, SPLOST I, and SPLOST II Capital Projects Funds to be major funds, The
Hotel/Motel Fund, Confiscated Assets Fund, Tree Bank Fund, City Center Fund, and the Police Facilities Fund
are considered non-major funds. The various funds are grouped, in the financial statements in this report, into
the following fund types:

Governmental Fund Types — Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of
the City are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and balances of current
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes
for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid.
The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are
the City’s major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another find.

Urban Redevelopment Agency Fund — This fund is used to account for the proceeds for the issuance of
bonds to finance or refinance urban improvement projects.

LCI Grant Capital Projects Fund — The LCI Grant Capital Projects Fund accounts for the proceeds from
a grant from the U. S. Department of Transportation. The proceeds from the grant are to be used to finance
improvements to the City’s Town Center sireetscapes.

The SPLOST I and II Capital Projects Funds — The SPLOST I and II Capital Projects Funds are used by
the City to account for acquisition and construction of major capital facilities that were approved by the
voters of Gwinnett County, Georgia through the special purpose local option sales tax referendums.

Proprietary Fund Type — Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income,
changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. The City’s proprietary funds are classified as
enterprise funds. Enterprise funds may be used to account for any activity for which a fee is charged to external
users for goods or services. The following are the City’s major proprietary funds: ‘

Solid Waste Management Enterprise Fund - The Solid Waste Management Enterprise Fund is used to
account for the revenues generated from the charges for sanitation and recycling services provided to the
residential and commercial users of the City.

Stormwater Management Enterprise Fund - The Stormwater Management Enterprise Fund is used to
account for the charges generated from stormwater services provided to citizens of the City of Snellville,

Georgia.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

E. Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements — The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operaiion of the City
are included on the Statement of Net Position. '

Fund Financial Statements — All governmental funds and the Spellville Downtown Development Authority
are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus, With this measurement focus,
only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet, The Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other
financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This
approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of government-wide financia! statements
are prepared. Therefore, governmental fund financial statements include a reconciliation with brief explanations
to better identify the relationship between the government-wide and the statements for governmental funds.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the
Statement of Fund Net Position. The Statement of Changes in Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net
Position presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. The Statement of
Cash Flows provides information about how the City finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary
activities.

On the proprietary funds financial statements, operating revenues are those that flow directly from the
operations of the activity, i.e. charges to customers Or users who purchase or use the goods or services of that
activity. Operating expenses are those that are incurred to provide the goods or services. Non-operating
revenues and expenses are items such as investment income and interest expense that are not a result of the

direct operations of the activity.

F. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless
of the measurement focus applied.

1. Accrual

Govemnment-wide financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting; proprietary funds also
use the accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recognized when carned and expenses are recognized when
incurred.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OQF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

T. Basis of Accounting — (Continued)

2. Modified Accrual

The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting, Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; ie., both
measurable and available. “Available” means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year
end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related
liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-
term debt, if any, is recognized when due.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are taxes, state and federal grants, fines, interest revenue and charges for
services. Major revenues that are determined not to be susceptible to accrual because they are either not
available soon enough to pay Habilities of the current period or are not objectively measurable include licenses,
penalties and miscellaneous revenues which are recorded as revenues when received in cash. Those revenues
that are measurable but are not collected within 60 days after year end are recorded as deferred revenues.

G. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits, and cash with fiscal
agents. Investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase are presented on
the financial statements as cash equivalents.

. Investments

Investments are stated at cost or amortized cost with accrued interest shown under a separate caption on the
balance sheet. All investments of the City as of June 30, 2013 consisted of non-participating interest-earning
investment contracts, certificates of deposit, and money market mutual funds.

1. Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Inventory, if any, in the General Fund
consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as expenditure at the time individual
inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased. Reported inventories are equally offset by a fund
balance reserve, which indicates that they do not constitute “available spendable resources” even though they
are a component of net current assets.

J. Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for service that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2013 are recorded as prepaid
items and are expensed during the period benefited.

K. Capital Assets

General capital assets are capital assets which are associated with and generally arise from governmental
activities. They generally result from expenditures in governmental funds. General capital assets are reported in
the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net position but are not reported in the
fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type
activities column of the government-wide statement of net position and in the respective funds,

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

K. Capital Assets —( C(_mtinued)

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $3,500 or more are reported at historical cost or
estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date received. Additions,
improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other
costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Interest incurred during the construction
phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed. No interest was capitalized during fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. Depreciation on all assets is
provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 30-40 years
Land improvements 30-40 years
Furniture and equipment 7-10 years .
Vehicles 5-10 years
Infrastructure 40-50 years
Improvemenis other than buildings 40-50 years

The City only reports infrastructure assets purchased subsequent to June 30, 2003.

1. Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations payable from proprietary funds are
reported on the proprietary fund financial statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner
and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However, claims and
judgments and compensated absences that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as liability in the
fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year. Long-term
loans are recognized as a lability on the governmental fund financial statements when due.

M. Revenues

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are billed and collected within the
same period in which the taxes are levied. In applying GASB No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider recognizes
liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility
requirements, including time requirements, are met. Resources fransmited before the eligibility requirements
are met are reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by the recipient.

N. Expenditures

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported In the
period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.

. Compensated Absences

The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation leave and associated employee-related costs when earned (or
estimated to be earned) by the employee. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in
subsequent fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item
between the fund and government-wide presentations. In accordance with the provisions of Statement No. 16 of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded
for nonvesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits.
(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued):

P. Interfund Activity

Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported as
interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services
provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses.
Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its
related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between
governmental funds are netted as part of the reconciliation o the government-wide financial statements.

Q. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditures
of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed by the City.
At June 30, 2013 there were no encumbrances outstanding.

R. Deferred Qutflows / Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflow of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future perfod(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources {expense / expenditures) until then. The government has one items that qualifies for reporting in this
category as of June 30, 2013. The item , deferred charge from refunding, is reported in the government-wide
statement of net position.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so. will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one type of item, which arises only under a
modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item,
nnavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report
imavailable revenues from three sources: property taxes, probation fines, and intergovernmental revenues.

S. Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets plus deferred ouiflows of resources and liabilities plus
deferred inflows of resources. Net position invested in capital asset consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, consiruction, or
improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their
use either through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

The City’s government-wide statement of net position reports $4,502,660 of restricted net position, of which
$4,031,921 is restricted by enabling legislation.

The City first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted
net position are available.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report).
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

T. Fund Eguity — Governmental Funds

As of June 30, 2013, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable — amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or because
they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions,
charter requircments or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of City of
Snellville’s Council. Snellville’s Council is the highest level of decision making authority for the City.
Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances approved by City
Council prior to end of the fiscal year. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in
place until a similar action is taken to remove or revise the limitation.

Assigned — amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that are
intended to be used for specific purposes. Only the City Council may assign amounts for specific purposes
through passage of a resolution. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily and do
not normally have to have an additional action taken for their removal.

Unassigned — all other spendable amounts.

As of June 30, 2013, fund balances are composed of the following:

1C1 SPLOST Nonmajor
General URA Grant Funds Funds Total

Nonspendable:

Prepaids 3 99005 3 - $ - $ - h) - 3 99,003
Restricted:

Capital Projects - - 27,238 3,779,912 443 501 4,230,651

Police Sexvices - - - - 122,688 122,688

Tree Bank - - - - 110,981 110,981

Economic Development - - - - 18,340 18,340
Committed - - - - - -
Assigned 273,837 20,000 - - - 203,837
Unassigned 35,050,783 - - - - 5,050,783

Total Fund Balances $ 5423625 § 20,000 § 27,238 $3,779812  § 695510 § 9946285

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available, the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditures is incurred for
which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers amounts to have been
spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the City
Couneil has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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1.

!,\)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

U. Contributions of Capital
Contributions of capital in the proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside coniributions of capital

assets, or from grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction.

V. Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and

accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

W. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
Prior to May 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year

commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. During June, the mayor and
council legally enact the budget through passage of an ordinance. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) except that
proprietary funds expense capital outlay instead of depreciation. The legal level of control (the level at which
the City Council must approve expenditures in excess of appropriations) for each legally adopted annual
operating budget is at the department level. Budget amounts are as originally adopted or as last amended.
Unexpended budget appropriations lapse at year-end.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the

government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City follows the State investment policies which require
all deposits in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance be collateralized by securities equal to at feast 110% of the
excess deposits. As of June 30, 2013, $10,047,431 of the City’s bank balances of $10,763,123 were exposed to
custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $ -
Uninsured and coHateral held by pledging bank's agent 10,047,431
Total $10,047,431

In accordance with state law, the City of Snellville can invest in: 1) Obligations issued by the U.S. Government,
any state, any political subdivision of the State of Georgia, or Local Government Invesiment Pool established
by state law; 2) Prime bankers’ acceptances; and 3) Repurchase agreements.

A portion of the City’s investments as of June 30, 2013 consisted of certificates of deposit in the amount of
$215,676. Other investments as of June 30, 2013 consist of the following:

Weighted
Investment Type Fair Value Avg Maturity
Columbia Treasury Shares 3 16 1 day(s)

Interest Rate Risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair
values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to less than 1 year.

Credit Risk. State law limits investments in debt issues to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized
statistical ratings organizations. The City’s investment in Columbia Treasury Reserves is rated Aaa by
Moody’s Investors Services and AAAm by Standard and Poor’s.

(Ses Independent Auditor’s Report)
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3. PROPERTY TAX
The City’s property taxes are billed and collected by Gwinnett County through an intergovernmental agreement.
The taxes were levied July 9, 2012 and are due and payable October 15% and November 15®. All taxes unpaid

after the October 15™ and November 15™ due dates are considered delinquent. Property taxes attach as an
enforceable lien on the property the following January 1¥. Delinquent taxes are considered fully collectable.

4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Allowance
for
Gross Bad Debts Net
Governmental Funds
Taxes $ 23768 % - § 237,689
Fines 603,202 416,209 186,993
Intergovernmental 500,218 - 500,218
Accounts 21,422 - 21,422
Solid Waste Management Fund
Accounts 319,641 107,800 211,841
Stormwaier Management Fund
Accounts 13,312 - 13,312
Total $1,695484 $ 524009 § 1,171,475

5. INTERGOVERNMENTAE REVENUES AND RECEIVABLES

Intergovernmental revenues for the year ended June 30, 2013 consist of the following:

Governmental Funds -

Gwinnett County - SPLOST Projects, See Note 10 $ 2,858,060
Georgia Office of Highway Safety - Police Computers 15,915
1J. 8. Dept. of Justice - COPS Grant 83,452
State of Georgla - GEMA, Rapid ID 21,596
State of Georgia - DOT, LMIG Program 127,385
State of Georgia - Department of Transportation LCI Grant 1,103,970

Total Intergovernmental Revenues $ 4,210,378

Tntergovernmental receivables as of June 30, 2013 consist of the following:

US Department of Justice Grant $ 22,620
Gwinnett County - SPLOST 461,683
Georgia Office of Highway Safety 15,915

Total Intergovernmental Receivables $ 500,218

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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6.

INTER-FUND TRANSACTIONS

Tnter-fund payables and receivables as of June 30, 2013 were as follows.

Due To
Due
From General SPLOSTI SPLOSTII  Stormwater Totai
Stormater $ 88805 § - $ - $ - 3 38,805
LCI Grant 425,573 366,637 88,000 - 1,080,210
Confiscated Assefs 2,500 - - - 2,500
Total $ 516878 $ 566,637 § 88,000 § - § 1,171,315

The Stormwater Fund and the Confiscated Assets Fund owed the General Fund $88,805 and $2,500,
respectively, for items expenditures from the General Fund’s operating bank account that were related to
Stormwater and Confiscated Assets and had not been reimbursed as of June 30, 2013, During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012 the General Fund and the SPLOST Funds financed the purchase of a significant amount of
land that is to be used for the Town Center streetscape project which is being financed with an LCI grant from
the U.S. Department of Transportation. The LCI Grant Fund will reimburse these Funds in fiscal year 2014
since the grant proceeds were received in June 2013. The expenditures made from the SPLOST Funds were
eligible expenditures under the SPLOST referendums.

Individual inter-fund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2013 were as follows:

Transfer to
Transfer
From URA Nonmajor Sanitation Total
General $ 20000 § 495930 § 475410 § 991340

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the General Fund transferred $991,340 to the various governmental
and proprietary funds, including $475,410 to the Solid Waste Management Fund to help fund utility operations
and $495,930 to the City Center Capital Projects Fund to help finance debt service requirements of the
Certificates of Participation and $20,000 to the Urban Redevelopment Agency Fund to sei up the Fund’s
operating bank account..

LITIGATION:

The City is a defendant in several lawsuits as of June 30, 2013. The outcome of these lawsuits and other
possible claims are not yet determinable but are not expected to materially effect the financial situation of the

City.
{(See Independent Auditor’s Report)

33




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

8. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — (Continued)

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure

Vehicles, including related equipment
Furniture and other equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure

Vehicles, including related equipment
Furniture and other equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 9,146,300 % 41946 % - $.9,183,246
182,212 1,428,017 {1,610,229) -
9,328,512 1,469,963 (1,610,229) 0,188,246
19,040,400 - - 19,040,400
1,112,843 1,601,540 - 2,714,383
4,785,141 7,793 - 4,792,934
2,736,691 153,547 (364,668) 2,525,570
3,712,511 26,732 (715,814) 3,023,429
31,387,586 1,789,612 (1,080,482) 32,096,716
2,477,550 476,739 - 2,954,289

347,581 48,523 - 396,104
438,723 114,832 - 533,555
1,852,058 177,616 (350,728} 1,678,946
1,966,508 229,022 " {656,815) 1,538,715
7,062,420 1,046,732 (1,007,543) 7,101,609
24,325,166 742,880 (72,939) 24,995,107
$ 33,653,678 § 2,212,843  §$(1,683,168) $34,183,353

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Administrative

Police and Court

Public Works

Parks

Community Development

Total depreciation expense

{See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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8. TPROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT. (Continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-Type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ - $ - $ - 3 -
Construction in progress - - - -
Total - - - -
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buiidings 577,673 - - 577,673
Improvements other than buildings 1,399,092 - (210,841) 1,188,251
Infrastructure 321,623 508,040 - 829,663
Vehicles, including related equipment 21,118 - - 21,118
Furniture and other equipment 227,846 228,089 - 455,935
Total capital assets being depreciated 2,547,352 736,129 {210,841) 3,072,640
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 106,917 14,446 - 121,363
Improvements other than buildings 287,160 39.609 - 326,769
Infrastructure 12,383 13,032 - 25,415
Vehicles, including related equipment 21,118 - - 21,118
Furniture and other equipment 217,754 17,129 - 234,883
Total accumulated depreciation 645,332 84,216 - 729,548
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,902,020 651,913 (210,841) 2,343,092
Business-Type Activities capital assets, net $ 1,902,020 § 651913 § (210,841) § 2,343,092

Depreciation expense of $38,379 was recorded in the Solid Waste Management Fund and $25,836 was recorded
in the Stormwater Management Fund.

9. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

During the year ended June 30, 2013 the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standard Board’s Statements
No. 63 Financial Reporting of Deferred Ouiflow of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position
and No. 65 Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. These Statements provide guidance for
reporting deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources balances which are distinguished
from assets and liabilities. The Statements changes the terminology of the residual of all other elements
presented in a statement of financial position to net position from net assets. The Statements provide guidance
for reporting net position within a framework that includes deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources, in addition to assets and liabilities along with defining items previously reported as assets and
liabilities.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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9.

19,

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT — (Continued)

As a result of the adoption of the Statements, the City was required to make a prior period adjustment to its
previously reported Net Position (Net Assets) sinee debt issnance cost is no longer considered an asset. The
Statements changed the reporting requirement for debt issuance costs o that these cost are now recognized as
an expense in the period incurred. The City made the following prior period adjustment as a result of the

adoption of these Statements:

Governmental
Net Position (Net Assets) - Activities
Beginning of the year $34,884.353
Adjustment to write-off debt issuance cost,
net of accumulated amortization {165,387)
Beginning of the year, adjusted $34,718,966

LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in General Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in loﬁg-term Habilities reported in the government-wide financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2013:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Increases _ Decreases Balance Portion

Governmenial Activities
Certificates of Participation $ 4200000 % - $ (4,290,000 % - $ -
Revenue Bonds - 3,496,000 - 3,496,000 -
Capital Lease Obligation 743 - (743) - -
Police Facilities Capital Lease 3,857,609 - (1,510,463) 2,347,146 1,553,698
Intergovernmertal Agreement -

DDA Capitai Lease 660,952 - {(37,428) 623,524 39,059
Termination Benefits 174,338 - (18,758) 155,580 12,965
Accrued Compensated Absences 370,231 333,185 (331,692) 371,724 50,000

Total $ 9353873 $ 3,829,185 S (6,189,084) § 6,993,974 § 1,655,722
Business-Type Activities
Capital Lease Obligation by - § 219,504 §  (56664) $ 162840 § 53,114

The General Fund typically has been used to liquidate Tong-term liabilities. However, SPLOST 1I will be used
to liquidate the police facilities capital lease. The Stormwater Management Fund will be used to liquidate the
business-type activity long-term liabilities.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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10. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT ISSUES -

CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

In July 2003, the City was a party to the issuance of Certificates of Participation in the amount of $6,795,000.
The certificates were issued under the name of Georgia Municipal Association, Inc. Leasing Program. Proceeds
from the cerificates are to be used to (1) finance the acquisition, construction and equipping of the new city hall
and related facilities and improvements and (2) to pay cost and fund reserves related to the execution-and
delivery of the certificates. :

Funding for the repayment of the certificates is to be made under an annual renewable lease agreement between
Georgia Municipal Association and the City of Snellville. The lease is for an initial term commencing July 1,
2003 through December 31, 2023 and shall, subject to the City’s right to terminate the lease each year, be
extended annually thereafter for additional one year renewable terms with a final renewable term commencing
January 1, 2023, The land and building are pledged as security against the certificates. Interest rates associated
with the certificates range between 2.0% and 4.59%.

The certificates were issued at a discount of $119,733. Debt discounts are considered other financing uses in
sovernmental funds in the year incurred but are deferred costs and are amortized over the life of the relaied debt
in the Statement of Net Position. The discount is being amortized over the life of the certificates using the
effective interest method and is reported as a contra account to the certificates, net of accumulated amortization

of $59,387.

This debt was refunded (paid-off) during fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 with the issuance of revenue bonds.

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Vehicle and Equipment —

In prior years, the City entered into various lease-purchase and security agreements with private corporations
for several vehicles with an original cost of $92,567 and computer equipment with an original cost of $201,439.
The interest rates under the terms of the lease agreements range between 4.04% and 4.59%. Since the City
intends fo continue to abide by the terms of these lease agreements and eventually own the vehicles and
computer equipment, the assets and the related liabilities were recorded at the present value of the future
payments due under the lease. All of these obligation had been retired as of June 30, 2013,

Police and Public Works Facilities —

In December 2010 the City entered into an installment sale agreement with the Georgia Municipal Association
to construct new police and public works facilitics. The fixed interest rate is 2.842% for five years. Since the
City intends to continue to abide by the terms of these lease agreements and eventually own the new facilities,
the assets and the related liabilities were recorded at the present value of the future payments due under the
lease. Under the terms of the installment sale agreement, the City pledged future SPLOST revenues to pay the
principal and interest outstanding. SPLOST revenues were projected to produce $16.027 million of which $6.4
million has been budgeted for public safety facilities related expenditures. Total principal and interest remaining
on the installment sale agreement is $2,414,171. For the year ended June 30, 2013, principal and interest
payments were $1,510,462 and $98,985, respectively.

{See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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16. LONG-TERM DERT (Continued}

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT ISSUES — (Continued)
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS — (Continued)

Land Purchase —

In June 2012 the Snellvilie Downtown Development Authority (DDA) obtained financing from a bank for the
purchase of approximately 10 acres of land in the City’s Town Center Area. The City and the DDA did enter
into an intergovernmental agreement whereby the City has guaranteed funding of the debt service of the note
through a capital lease obligation. At the end of the capital lease the City will own the land. As a result the DDA
recorded a liability for the note payable and an amount due from the City in the amount of $697,450 and
reduces the balance as the City pays the debt service on the lease. The City has also recorded a liability in the
governmental-wide financial statements for the amount due under the intergovernmental agreement.

REVENUE BONDS

In May 2013 the Urban Redevelopment Agency of Snellville issued revenue bonds in the amount of $3,496,000
to refinance the Certificates of Participation and to pay cost associated with the issuance of the bonds. Interest is
being charged at 1.55% and the debt is secured by the city administrative facilities. The bonds mature in July

2023.

Annual repayment requirements under the revenue bonds and capital lease agreements are as Tollows:

REYENUE CAPITAL LEASE
FY/E BONDS LAND AND BUILDINGS
JUNE 30, PRINCIPAL ~ INTEREST ~ PRINCIPAL  INTEREST TOTAL
2014 $ - $ 34021 § 1,592,757 § 76,731 § 1,704,409
2015 319,000 51,716 833,855 30,911 1,235,482
2016 332,000 46,671 544,058 18,241 540,970
2017 337,000 41,486 - - 378,486
2018 342,000 36,223 - - 378,223
2019 347,000 30,885 - - -~ 377,883
2020 353,000 25,438 - - 378,458
2021 338,000 19,948 - - 377,948
2022 364,000 14353 - - 378,353
2023 369,600 8,672 377,672
2024 375,600 2,906 .- - 377,906
TOTALS $ 3496000 $ 313237 $ 2970670 0§ 125883 § 6905790

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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10. LONG-TERM DERBT {Continued)

11.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES DEBT ISSUE

In April 2013 the City entered into a lease purchase and security agreement with a financial institution for the
purchase of a 2013 Vactor Sewer Jetter Combo Truck in the amount of $219,504. Depreciation on the machine
for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 amounted to $12,804. The interest rate under the terms of the lease
agreement is 2.18%. Since the City intends to continue to abide by the terms of these lease agreements and
eventually own the equipment, the asset and the related liability were recorded at the present value of the future
payments due under the lease. :

Annual repayment requirements under the capital lease agreement are as follows:

CAPITAL
F/Y/E LEASE
JUNE 34, PRINCIPAL ~ INTEREST TOTTAL
2014 $ 53,114 % 3,550 3 56,664
2018 54,272 2,392 56,664
2016 53,434 1,206 56,663
TOTALS $§ 162,840 3§ 7,151 § 169,991

Advanced Refunding —

As indicated earlier in this note, the Urban Redevelopment Agency issued $3,496,000 of revenue bonds in May
2013. The proceeds of the issue provided resources to purchase U.S. Government and State and Local
Government Securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for a short period of time for the purpose of
generating resources to pay off the principal balance and interest due on the certificates of participation as of
July I, 2013. As a result, the refunded debt is considered defeased and the liability has been removed from the
Governmental Type Activities in the statement of net position.

The refunding was undertaken to reduce future debt service payments. The reacquisition price exceeded the net
carrying amount of the old debt by $60,346. This amount is reported as a “deferred charge from refunding” and
will be amortized over the old debt’s life, which is to July 1, 2023. The transaction also resulted in a net present
value savings of $464,413 and a reduction of $1,145,501 in future debt service payrments.

UNAVAILABLE REVENUES

Unavailable revenues as of June 30, 2013, reported in the Governmental Fund’s balance sheet, consisted of the
following revenue itemns which had been earned and were measurable but were not received within 60 days afier
year end and therefore were not considered available:

General Fund

Property taxes $ 64,352
Fines and forfeitures 98,851
Total $§ 163,203

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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12.

13.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Snellville is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City has joined together with
other municipalities in the state as part of the Georgia Interlocal Risk Management Agency (GIRMA) for
property and liability insurance and the Workers’ Compensation Self-Insurance Fund (WCSIF), public entity
risk pools currently operating as common risk management and insurance programs for member local
governments. The Georgia Municipal Association (GMA) administers both risk pools.

As part of these risks pools, the City is obligated to pay all contributions and assessments as prescribed by the
pools, to cooperate with the pools’ agents and attorneys, to follow loss reduction procedures established by the
funds, and to report as promptly as possible, and in accordance with any coverage descriptions issued, all
incidents which could result in the funds being required to pay any claim of loss. The City is also to allow the
pools” agent and aftorneys to represent the City in investigation, settlement discussions and all levels of
litigation arising out of any claim made against the City within the scope of loss protection furnished by the
funds. The City pays an annual premium to GIRMA for its general insurance and has coverage of $1,000,000
for the risks discussed above, except for buildings, which are covered at 100% of the value of the City’s
holdings. The City’s coverage for worker’s compensation claims is statutory.

The funds are to defend and protect the members of the funds against Hability or loss as prescribed in the
member governments’ contracts and in accordance with the workers” compensation laws of Georgia. The funds
are to pay all cost taxed against members in any legal proceeding defended by the members, all interest
accruing after entry of judgment, and all expenses incurred for investigation, negotiation or defense.

The City continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, employee health and accident
insurance. Settled claims in the past three years have not exceeded the commercial insurance coverage.

HOTEL /MOTEL TAX

The City levies a 8% hotel/motel tax in accordance with the provisions of OCGA 48-13-51. In order to comply
with the expenditures provisions of this code section, the City expends 100% of monies collected under this
provision for tourism and promotional purposes by contracting with the Snellville Tourism and Trade
Association. During the year ended June 30, 2013, the City’s collections and related remittances were as
follows:

Amount Percent
Total Collections $ 106,627 100%
Total Remittances $ 106,627 100%

The City was in compliance with the state laws regulating hotel/motel taxes and the related expenditures as of
Jime 30, 2013.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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14. JOINT VENTURE

Under.Georgia law, the city, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the Metro Atlanta area, is a
member of the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC). Membership in this organization is required by the
Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA) Section 50-8-34, which provides for the organizational structure
of the Commission in Georgia. The ARC Board membership includes the chief elected official of each county, .
one vepresentative for all the cities in a member county and 15 citizen representatives. OCGA 50-8-39.1
provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of the ARC. Separate financial
statements may be obtained from:

Atlanta Regional Commission
3715 Northside Parkway
Building 200, Suite 300
Atlanta, Georgia 30327

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Money Purchase Pension Plan -

On March 1, 2002 the City converted its defined benefit pension plan and adopted the City of Snellville,
Georgia Employee Pension Plan (a defined contribution plan). The City now uses the money purchase pension
plan to provide pension benefits to most of its full-time employees. The plan is being administered by Pension
Financial Services, a private corporation. The pension plan is authorized by city council through the passage of
an ordinance. The city council is responsible for establishing and amending the plan’s provision and for
establishing and amending contribution requirements.

Under the terms of the plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment
carnings. Employees are eligible to participate after completing one year of service. The City’s contribution to
the plan depends upon each participant’s base salary. The City will contribute 6% of each eligible employee’s
base monthly salary to the plan. Employees are not required to make any contributions to the plan. The amount
of payroll covered under the plan for the year ended June 30, 2013, amounted to approximately $3,5060,300.
Gross payroll for the year was §4,157,724.

The City’s contribution for each employee vests in accordance with the following schedule:

Completed years Vested
of Services Percentage
3 50%
5 100%

Contributions made by the City to the money purchase pension plan for the year ended June 30, 2013, amounted
10 $210,377 which is 6% of covered payroll.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS. (Continued)

Deferred Compensation Plan —

Under the terms of the deferred compensation plan, any employee can voluntarily defer receipt of up to 25% of
gross compensation, not to exceed $15,000 per year. Each participant selects one of various options to
administer the investment of the deferred funds. All administration costs of the plan are deducted from the
participants’ accounts. The deferred amounts may be distributed to the employee upon retirement or other
termination of employment, disability, death, or financial hardship (as defined).

Defined Benefit Plan —

In prior years the City contributed to the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System (GMEBS), an agent
multiple-employer public employee reiirement system administered by the Georgia Municipal Association. The
City of Snellville Retirement Plan was a defined benefit plan that provided retirement and disability benefits
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries (superceded plan). The Public Retirement Systems
Standard Law (Georgia Code Section 47-20-10) assigns the authority to establish and amend the plan to the
City of Snellville. The Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. The report may be
obtained by writing to the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System, 201 Pryor Street, S.W., Atlanta,
Georgia 30303. '

As mentioned under the caption “Money Purchase Pension Plan” the defined benefit plan was converted to a
defined contribution plan (successor defined contribution plan) on March 1, 2002, GMEBS was authorized to
continue making monthly retirement and death benefit payments after March I, 2002 to retirees and
beneficiaries who were in pay status under the superceded plan on or before such date and to provide firture
benefits for any vested terminated participant as of February 28, 2002. In order to ensure adequate funding for
benefits to be provided to retirees, beneficiaries and vested terminated participants, the City Council approved
an ordinance that provides for the following:

. Retention of assets in the City’s GMEBS administered trust fund in an amount equal to 110% of the
combined present value of accrued benefits payable to retivees and beneficiaries.

9 The assets in the trust fund shall share in any investment gains or losses of the GMEBS Retirement Trust
Fund.

3. Subsequent valuations of the trust fund’s liabilities shafl be made annually and any gains or losses will be
amortized over five years.

4. The City shall make an anmual contribution to the frust fund equal to 110% of the recommended
contribution amount reflected in each annual valuation ptus administration fees.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued}

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS, (Continued)

Defined Benefit Plan, Continued

For 2013, the City’s annual pension cost was § -0- for SRP as calculated under the above mentioned City
ordinance. However, the City did pay administrative fees of $8,158. The required comiribution was determined
as part of the January 1, 2013 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The
actuarial assumptions included 8.0% investment rate of return (net of adminisirative expenses) which includes
an inflation rate of 5%. There were no active employees and therefore no projected salary increases were used.
The value of SRP assets was determined using market values. The actuarial accrued lability as of January 1,
2013 was $843,606. The annual pension contribution for 2013 was calculated as follows:

Total actuarial accrued liability (as of 1/1/13) § 843,606
10% of actuarial accrued liability (margin) 84,361
Target asset value 927,967
Actual market value of assets 1.517.374
Difference or contribution to find plan $ (589407

The City was not required to make any contribution to the plan during the year except for administrative fees as
mentioned above. The Plan amortizes actuarial gains and losses using the level dollar cost method.

Three-Year Trend Information for SRP

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/2013 $ - N/A $ -
6/30/2012 $ - N/A $ -
6/30/2011 b - N/A 5 -

Supplementary Information - The schedule of funding progress for the Plan is presented below:

Actuarial
Valuation
Dafte

2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004

Actuarial UAAL asa
Market Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
(a) (b) {b-a) {a/b} (c) {(b-ayc)
$1,517,374 $ 843,600 $ (673,768) 179.8% n/a n/a
$1,321,417 § 846,748 $ (474,66%) 156.1% na na
$ 1,381,112 $ 892,450 § (488,662) 154.8% n'a n/a
$ 1,467,511 5 369,934 § (597,577) 168.7% nfa wa
$ 1,150,137 $ 938,524 3 (211,613) 122.5% n/a n/a
$ 1,745,345 $ 905730 $ (839,615 192.7% n/a n/a
$ 1,569,157 $ 1,044,393 § (524,764) 150.2% n/a n/a
$ 1,440,198 $ 1,053,431 $ (386,76T) 136.7% n/a n/a
$ 1,358,153 $ 1,026,138 $ (332,015) 132.4% n/a n/a
$ 1,337,348 $ 1,123,518 $ (213,830) 119.0% n/a n/a

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
43




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
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16. EARLY RETIREMENT PLAN

2010 Early Retirement Incentive —

In 2010 the City put together offers for employees as an early retirement incentive. To be eligible for the early
retirement incentives, employees must (1) have attained the age of 55; (2) have worked for the City at least ten
years; (3) have worked a minimum of 100 days during the year; and (4) have not received an official notice of
layoff or termination. Employees could choose between 5 different plans, some of which offered pension
conributions as a percentage of salary per year until age 65, health insurance premiums covered by the City
until age 65, 6 months payout of salary, and payouts of vacation and sick leave benefits. The total liability to the
City at the start of the program was $399,327. Of this total liability for termination benefits, $84,327 was paid
with expendable available financial resources and was therefore recognized in the fund financial statements in
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The remainder was reported in the government-wide financial statements as a
long term obligation. Termination benefits are expected to be paid through 2025. Benefits have been calculated
using a 6% discount rate of future benefit payments and a 6% inflation rate, if applicable.

6/30/12 6/30/13
Salary, vacation and
sick leave payouts 5 - § -
Pension contributions - -
Medical insurance benefits 174,338 155,580
174,338 155,580

Amounts already accrued

for selected employees in

compensated absences, etc - -
Net termination benefits to accrue 174,338 155,580

Amounts payable with expendable
available resources - fund level - -

Long-term obligation - § 174338 § 155,580

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

17. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY NOTE PAYABLE

In June 2011 the Snellville Downtown Development Authority (DDA) obtained financing from a bank for the
purchase of approximately 10 acres of fand in the City’s Town Center Area. The City and the DDA did enter
into an intergovernmental agreement whereby the City has guaranteed funding of the debt service of the note
through a capitat lease obligation. At the end of the capital lease the City will own the land. As a result the DDA
has recorded a liability for the note payable and an amount due from the City in the amount of $697,450. The
City has also recorded a liability in the governmental-wide financial statements for the amount due under the
intergovernmental agreement. The remaining annual debt service requirements to maturity for the note payable
as of December 31, 2012 (the DDA’s fiscal year end) are as follows:

FIY/E
DECEMBER 31, PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL
2013 $ 38402 % 21,639 § 60,041
2014 39,727 20,315 60,042
2015 41,097 18,544 60,041
2016 523,663 8,943 532,606
TOTALS b 642,889 § 69,841 3 712,730

18. SETTLEMENT OF SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY LAWSUIT

On February 7, 2012 the City, along with 14 other Gwinnett municipalities, signed a Final Consent Order
settling legal action against Gwinnett County in the Service Delivery Strategy (SDS) matter. With the signing of
the Order, the County recognized the value of the City provision of certain services {Police, Planning, 911
Dispatch) within the City’s boundaries and agreed to a monetary settlement for such provision. The financial
impact for F/Y - 12 amounted to a one-time payment in the amount of $1,331,000 which can be used for
General Fund purposes. The agreement also requires a semi-anaual payment of $211,761 designated to offset
911 Dispatch expenses. Annual payment for Police / 911 services in the amount of approximately $433,000 will
be received for the next six years according to the final agreement. The City will also teceive an annual
payment of approximately $220,000 from the County that the City may use fo finance operations.

19. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLGSURES

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosures, as a part of the combined statements - overview,
of certain information concerning individual funds including-

A. Deficit fund balances or retained earnings balances of individual funds -None of the City’s individual funds
at June 30, 2013 had a deficit fund balance.

B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual funds are as follows:
The City’s Hotel / Motel Tax Fund had expenditures of $119,632 which exceeded its corresponding
appropriations of $80,000. In addition, management failed to prepare a budget for the Urban
Redevelopment Agency Fund, which is a special revenue fund. All special revenue funds are required by
state law to have legally adopted annual budgets.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
JUNE 30, 2013
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Confiscated Assets Fund - to account for the assets confiscated from investigations into
illegal drug activities. These assets are legally restricted to expenditures for law enforcement
purposes.

Tree Bank Fund - to account for proceeds of fees charged under the City's tree bank ordinance.

Hotel / Motel Tax Fund - this fund is used by the City to account for proceeds from the City;s
Hotel / Motel Tax and the requirred 40% payment to a non-profit organization for promotional
services.

Capital Project Funds

City Center Fund - This fund accounts for the proceeds from the issuance of Certificates
of Participation. The proceeds from the debt issue are to be used for financing the construction
of the new City Administration Offices and the related debt service.

Police Facilities Fund - This fund accounts for the proceeds from the issuance of a fong-term capital
lease. The proceeds from the debt issue are to be used for financing the construction of a new
Public Safety Facility.




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30,2013

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

CONFISCATED TREE
ASSETS BANK HOTELMOTEL
FUND FUND FUND
ASSETS
Cash 3 132,223 3§ 110,981 § 29,070
Investments - - -
Receivables-
Taxes - - 11,697
Accounts - - -
Grants 13,915 - -
Due from other funds - - -
Total Assets $ 148,138 § 110981 % 40,767
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable 3 3335 § - 5 22,427
Due from other funds ‘ 2,500
Unearned revenues 19.615 - -
Total Liabilities 25,450 - 22,427
Fund Balance
Restricted -
Police Activities 122,688 - -
Tree Bank Activities - 110,981 -
Economic Development - - 18,340
Capital Projects ‘ - - -
EUnassigned - - -
Total Fund Balance 122,688 110,981 18,340
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 148,138 % 110,981 $ 40,767
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CAPITAL
PROJECTS

FUNDS

CITY

CENTER

FUND

POLICE

FUND

TOTAL

NON-MAJOR
FACILITIES GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS

16

$

443,485

$

715,759
16

11,697

15,915

16

743,387

25,762
2,500
19,615

47,877

16

443,485

122,688
110,981

18,340
443,501

16

443,485

695,510

16

$

443 485

b

743,387




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 38,2013
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
CONFISCATED TREE HOTEL/
ASSETS BANK MOTEL TAX
FUND FUND FUND
REVENUES
Confiscations $ 105,145  § - $ -
Tree Bank Bonds - - -
Taxes - - 106,627
Intergovernimental 37,511 - -
[nterest 80 93 29
Miscetlaneous - - -
Total Operating Revenues 142,736 93 106,656
EXPENDITURES
Current -
Police Activities 14,354 - -
Tree Bank - 2,675 -
Economic Development - - 118,427
Tourism and Promotion - - 1,205
Highways and Streets - - -
Capital -
Police 87,830 - -
Highways and Streets - - -
Debt service -
Principal - - -
Interest - - -
Total Expenditures 102,184 2,675 119,632
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures 40,552 (2,582) (12,976)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers - - -
Net Changes in Fund Balances 40,352 (2,582) (12,976)
Fund Balance - Beginning of year 82,136 113,363 31,316
Fund Balance - End of year $ 122688 % 110,981 $ 18,340
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS TOTAL
CITY POLICE NON-MAJOR
CENTER FACILITIES  GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUNDS

- $ - $ 105,145

] . 106,627

- - 37,511

82 323 607

82 323 249,890

. - 14,354

- . 2,675

. ] 118,427

- - 1,205

- . 87,830

881,652 - 881,652
175,930 - 175,930
1,057,582 ; 1,282,073
(1,057,500) 323 (1,032,183)
495,930 - 495,930
(561,570) 323 (536,253)
561,586 443,162 1,231,763

16 $ 443485 $ 695,510
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

GENERAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Taxes
Fines
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Due from other fiinds
Prepaid items

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses -
Salaries
Deposits
Police bonds and court fees
Other

Due to other funds

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Deferred Inflows:
Unavailable revenues

Fund Equity:
Fund Balance
Nonspendable -
Prepaids
Assigned -
Appropriations for nex year's budget
Unassigned

Total Fund Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFEERED INFLOWS,
AND FUND EQUITY

48

2013

§ 4,804,830
215,676

225,992
186,993
21,422
22,620
516,878

99,005

$ 6093416

g 228,838

111,632
133,617
32,501

506,588

163,203

99,005

273,837

3,050,783

5,423,625

$ 6093416

2012

3,917,249
215,407

281,556
182,644
32,836
21,448
425,573
126,825

3,203,538

211,741

98,380
143,775
54,215

233

508,394

217,591

126,825
496,022
3,854,706
4,477,553

$ 5203538




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET BASIS AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
WITH COMPARABLE AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012.

JUNE 30, 2013
FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE  JUNE 30, 2012
REVENUES;
Taxes -
Property $ 3,198,744 § 3,155486 § (43,258) § 3,675,089
Motor vehicle 175,000 186,557 11,557 200,074
Title advalorem - 203,289 203,289 -
Franchise 1,255,000 1,247,976 (7,024} 1,238,386
Alcohol beverage 300,000 325,737 25,737 339,794
Insurance premiwm 860,000 908,318 48,818 855,626
Business occupational 707,000 756,072 49,0072 727,152
Intangible 30,000 52,890 22,890 52,178
Transfer 9,000 9,152 152 13,745
Financial institution 80,000 84,558 4,558 83,983
Total Taxes 6,614,744 6,930,535 315,791 7,186,027
Business Licenses and Permits -
Alcohol licenses 77,500 73,841 (3,659 85,908
Other business licenses 30,000 32,700 2,700 34,762
Building permits 132,500 48,104 (84,396) 268,425
Inspection permits 15,000 10,845 (4,155} 14,372
Sign permits 6,000 4,500 (1,500} 8,315
Site development 6,000 921 {(5,079) 3,070
Other permits 5,500 5,212 (288) 5,798
Total Business Licenses and Permits 272,500 176,123 (96,377} 420,650
Intergovernmental -
County E-911 assistance - - - 211,761
County SDS Settlement 225,000 220,229 4,771) 1,331,008
COPS Grant 108,000 83,452 (24,548) 101,361
LMIG program - 127,385 127,385 -
Other - - - -
Total Intergovernmental 333,000 431,066 98,066 1,644,130
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET BASIS AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

WITH COMPARABLE AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES - Continued:

Charges for Services -
Recreational activities
E911 fees
Public safety fees
Planning and zoning fees
Other

Total Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures

Investment Income

Rental Income

Other -
Reimbursements
Donations

Penalties and interest
Miscellaneous

Total Other

TOTAL REVENUES

JUNE 30, 2013

FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE  JUNE 30, 2012
132,000 § 140,022 8022 § 140308

480,164 749,475 269311 §$ -
51,500 69,771 18,271 72,267
36,000 27,983 (8,017) 40,120
- 1,221 1,221 745
699,664 988,472 288,808 253,440
1,300,000 1,834,775 34,775 2,008,435
2,000 4,587 2,587 4216
83,980 78,370 (5,610) 76,193

- 3,130 3,130 -

- 2,550 2,550 .
- 31,707 31,707 34,903
24,500 54,587 30,087 51,821
24,500 91,974 67,474 86,724
0,830,388 § 10,535002 § 705514 $ 11,679,817
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUPGET BASIS AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
WITH COMPARABLE AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CURRENT EXPENDITURES:

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Govermning Body
City Clerk
Mayor
City Manager
Elections
General Administration
Accounting
IT Administration
Purchasing
Human Resources

Total General Government

MUNICIPAL COURT

Judicial

POLICE
Administration
Criminal Investigation
Patrol
Records
Dispatch
Public Relations

Total Police

PUBLIC WORKS
Highways and Streets
Paved Streets
Maintenance

Total Public Works

JUNE 30, 2013

FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE  JUNE 30, 2012
$ 40,377 % 32,373 $ 3,004 § 26,163
81,179 80,849 330 77,101
14,231 11,475 2,756 7,085
130,681 126,322 4,359 145,652
- . - 3,737
901,998 850,690 51,308 909,201
74,169 77,981 (3.812) 76,042
65,201 64,547 654 64,125
87,598 85,959 1,639 84,748
1,395,434 1,330,196 65,238 1,393,854
703,614 683,873 19,741 720,132
676,318 692,525 (16,207) 1,196,156
562,254 449,091 113,163 402,582
2,043,045 2,120,321 (77,276) 2,034,237
103,254 103,522 (268) 103,289

491,579 490,690 889 -
3,876,450 3,856,149 20,301 3,736,264
726,504 696,139 30,365 668,667
199,976 176,706 23,270 221,507
51,565 51,311 254 52,003
978,045 924,156 53,889 942,177
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
WITH COMPARABLE AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNF 30, 2012

JUNE 30, 2013
FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE JUNE 30, 2012
CURRENT EXPENDITURES - Continued
PARKS AND RECREATION
Administration $ 348,480 % 307,633 § 40,847  § 276,389
Participant Recreation 49,246 43,834 5412 39,916
Park Areas 150,876 164,821 (13,945) 196,811
Senior Participants 132,007 139,915 (7,908} 132,310
Total Parks and Recreation 680,609 656,203 24,406 645,426
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Planning and Zoning 404,600 404,578 (378) 411,384
Building Inspection 196,408 134,246 62,162 199,611
Total Community Development 600,408 538,824 61,584 610,995
TOTAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES 8,234,560 7,989,401 245,159 8,048,848
CAPITAL OUTLAY
General Government 60,000 28,988 31,012 58,694
Police 159,000 159,303 (303) 13,714
Public Works 636,022 336,275 299,747 368,004
Parks and Recreation 23,100 23,883 (788) 44,984
Court - - - -
Community Development 18,000 11,427 6,573 -
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 896,122 359,881 336,241 485,396
DEBYT SERVICE
Principal 36,000 38,171 (2,171) 96,905
Interest 24,041 22,616 1,425 25,144
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 60,041 60,787 (746) 122,049
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 9,190,723 & 8,610,069 § 580,654 § 8,656,293
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
CONFISCATED ASSETS FUND

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
2013 2012
ASSETS

Cash 3 132,223 95,735
Grant receivable ' 15,915 19,994

Due from other fimds - -
Fotal Assets h 148,138 115,729

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
- Liabilities

Accounts payable 5 3,335 3,551

Due to other funds 2,500 -
Unearned revenues 19,615 30,042
Total Liabilities 25,450 33,593

Fund Balance

Restricted for police activities 122,688 82,136
Total Fund Balance 122,688 82,136
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance b 148,138 113,729
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CITY OF SNELLVILLFE, GEORGIA
CONFISCATED ASSETS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE--BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

WITH COMPARABLE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
JUNE 30, 2013
BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET JUNE 30, 2012
REVENUES
Confiscations $ - $ - $ 105,145 3 105,145 $ 55,915
Tnterest - - 30 80 86
Granis - - 37,511 37,511 18,953
Total Revenues - - 142,736 142,736 74,954
EXPENDITURES
Police Activities -
Current 25,500 25,500 14,354 11,146 7,281
Capital 80,000 80,000 87,830 (7.830) 60,110
Total Expenditures 103,500 105,500 102,184 3,316 67,391
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures {105,500} (105,500 40,552 146,052 7,563
Gther Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers - - - - -
Total : - - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance {105,500) (105,500) 49,3532 146,052 7,563
Fund Balance - Beginning of year 82,130 82,136 82,136 - 74,573
Fund Balance - End of year 3 (23.364) % (23,364) 3 122,688 $ 146,052 $ 82,136




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
TREE BANK FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash $ 110,981 113,563
Accounts receivable - -
Due from other funds - -
Total Assets 3 110,981 113,563
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Iiabilities
Accounts payable b - -
Total Liabilities - -
Fund Balance
Restricted for Tree Bank activities 110,981 113,563
Total Fund Balance 110,981 113,563
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 3 110,981 113,563
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
TREE BANK FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE--BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
WITH COMPARABLE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

JUNE 30, 2013
BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE -
WITH FINAL ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET JUNE 30, 2012
REVENUES
Tree Bank bonds k) - $ - $ - 5 - $ -
Interest ) - - 93 93 39
Miscellaneous - - - - -
Total Revenues - - 93 93 89
EXPENDITURES
Current -
Community Development -
Tree Baok 25,600 23,000 2,673 22,325 -
Capital - .
City Center - - - - -
Total Expenditures 25,000 25,000 2,673 22,323 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures {25,000) (25,000) {2,582) 22,418 89
Other Financing Sources (Uses): ,
Transfers - - - - -
Total . - - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance (23,000) (25,000) (2,582) 22,418 89
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 113,563 113,563 113,363 - 113,474
Fund Balance - £nd of Year 5 88,563 $ 88,563 $ 110,081 $ 22,418 3 113,363




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND

ASSETS

Cash
Receivables -
Taxes

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Total Liabilities

Fund balance
Restricted for economic development

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2612

2013 2012
$ 29,070 31,316
11,697 10,002
$ 40,767 41318
$ 22,427 10,002
22,427 10,002
18,340 31,316
18,340 31,316
$ 40,767 41,318
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
HOTEL /MOTEL TAX FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
WITH COMPARABLE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2012

JUNE 30, 2013
BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET JUNE 30, 2012
REVENUES
Taxes 3 80,000 $ 80,600 5 106,627 $ 26,627 $ 90,622
Interest 40 40 29 (1n 33
Donations - - - - -
Total Revenues 80,040 30,040 106,656 26,616 90,657
EXPENDITURES
Current -
Economic Development-
Contracted services - - 11,800 (11,800) -
Payments to others 80,000 80,000 106,627 (26,627) 90,622
Tourism and Promotion-
Contracted services - : - 1,205 (1,205) 20,389
Cemetery Fence - - - - -
Total Expenditures 80,600 80,000 119,632 (39,632) 111,011
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 40 40 (12,976) (13,016) (20,354)
Other Finaﬂcing Sources (Uses):
Transfers - - - - -
Total - - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance 40 40 (12,976) (13,016) {20,334}
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 31,316 31,316 31,316 - 51,670
Fund Balance - £nd of Year $ 31,336 $ 31,356 $ 18,340 $ (13,016 § 31,316
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URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF SNELLVILLE

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30,2013
ASSETS
Cash ) $ 20,000
Investment )
Total Assets $ 20,000
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
- Accounts payable 5 -
Total Liabilities -
Fund balance
Assigned - Redevelopment 20,000
Total Fund Balance 20,000
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 5 20,000
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URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF SNELLVILLE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

REVENUES
Contributions 5 -
Interest -

Total Revenues -

EXPENDITURES

Current-
Consultant -
Debt service -
Principal -
Interest -
Cost of issuance 87,652

Total Expenditures 87,652

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (87,652)

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)

Debt issue - refimding bonds 3,496,000
Payment to refunded debt escrow agent {3,408,348)
Transfers 20,000
Net change in fund balance 20,000

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year -

Fund Balance - End of Year $ 20,000
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
CITY CENTER CAPITAL PROGJECTS FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash 5 - $ -
Investment 16 561,586
Accrued interest receivable - -
Total Assets $ 16 $ 361,586
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities _
Accounts payable $ - $ -
Total Liabilities - -
Fund balance
Restricted for capital projects 16 561,586
Total Fund Balance 16 561,586
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 3 16 b 561,586
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
CITY CENTER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANT) CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - FROM INCEPTION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013

PRIOR CURRENT PROJECT
YEARS YEAR TOTAL AUTHORIZATION
REVENUES
Investment income 3 213,119 § 82 3 213,201 $ 100,000
Miscellaneous income 62,000 - 62,000 -
Total Revenues 275,119 82 275,201 100,000
EXPENDITURES
Capital
General Government 7,984,468 - 7,984,468 7,406,348
Debt Service
Principal 2,505,000 881,652 3,386,652 6,795,000
Interest 1,960,472 175,930 2,136,402 3,121,142
Total Expenditures 12,449,940 1,057,582 13,507,522 17,322,690
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (12,174,821) (1,057,500) (13,232,321) (17,222,690)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from long-term debt 6,795,000 - 6,795,000 -6,795,000
Discount on debt issue (119,733) - (119,733) (119,733)
Tssue cost on debt (247,623) - (247,623) {247,623)
Transfers 6,308,763 495,930 6,804,693 10,795,046
Total Other Financing
Sources {Uses) 12,736,407 495,930 13,232,337 17,222,690
Net Change in Fund Balance 3 561,586 3 (561,570) % 16 $ -
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year 561,586
Eand of year $ 16
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
LCI GRANT FUND
BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash 3 1,108,686 b 6,505
Accounts receivable - 3,900
Grant receivable - 1,110,156
Total Assets $ 1,108,686 $ 1,120,561
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,238 $ -
Duz to other funds 1,080,210 1,080,210
Total Liabilities 1,081,448 1,080,210
Deferred Inflows
TUnavailable grant revenues - 1,110,156
Fund Balance
Restricted for capital projects 27,238 -
Unassigned - 40,351
Total Fund Balance 27,238 40,351
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balance % 1,108,686 3 2,230,717
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REVENUES
LCI grant
Interest

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current -
Contract services
Capital -
Construction

. Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers

Total

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
LCTI GRANT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE--BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2013

BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET
$ - $ - $ 1,103,970 $ 1,103,970
- - 11 11
- - 1,103,981 1,103,981
- - 6,938 (6,938)
359,000 359,000 - 359,000
359,000 359,000 6,938 352,062
(359,000) (359,000) 1,097,043 1,456,043
(359,000) (359,000) 1,097,043 1,456,043
(1,069,805) (1,069,805) (1,069,805) -
$ (1,428,805) $ (1,428,805) 27,238 $ 1,456,043
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
POLICE FACILITIES FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash ' $ 443,485 $ 443,162
Accrued interest receivable - -
Total Assets S 443,185 3 443,162
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ -
Total Liabilities _ - -
Fund balance
Restricted for capital projects 443,485 443,162
Total Fund Balance 443,485 443,162
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 3 443,485 $ 443,162
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
POLICE FACILITIES FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - FROM INCEPTION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JYINE 30, 2013

PRICR CURRENT PROJECT
YEARS YEAR TOTAL AUTHORIZATION
REVENUES
Investment income 3 16,182 $ 323 8 16,505 3 -
Miscellaneous income - - - -
Total Revenues 16,182 323 16,505 -
EXPENDITURES
Capital
Police facilities 5,827,044 - 5,827,044 6,245,458
Public works facilities 1,201,434 - 1,201,434 1,200,000
Debt Service - - - -
Issue cost on debt 59,542 - 59,542 59,542
Total Expenditures 7,088,020 - 7,088,020 7,505,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (7.071,838) 323 {7,071,515) {7,505,000)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from long-term debt 7,505,000 - 7,503,000 7,505,000
Transfers 10,000 - 10,000 -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 7,515,000 - 7,515,000 7,505,000
Net Change in Fund Balance 3 443,162 323 5 443,485 b -
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year 443,162
End of year $ 443,485
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST I CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

ASSETS

Cash
Taxes receivabie
Due from other funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance
Restricted for capital outlay

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance
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2013 2012

71 3 982,322
566,637 366,637
566,708 b 1,548,959

- 3 58,541

- 58,541
566,708 1,490,418
366,708 1,490,418
566,708 5 1,548,959




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST I CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET (GAAF BASIS) AND ACTUAL - FROM INCEPTION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

PRIOR CURRENT TOTAL TO PROJECT
YEARS YEAR DATE AUTHORIZATION
REVENUES .
Intergovernmental $ 11,688,381 3 - 3 11,688,581 3 11,056,158
Interest 268,921 2H 299,132 -
Total Revenues 11,987,502 211 11,987,713 11,056,158
EXPENDITURES
Capital Qutlay
Transportation 3,593,532 - 3,593,532 4,056,158
Public Safety 4,162,723 - 4,162,723 5,000,000
Cultural, Historic, & Recreation 2,433,383 023,921 3,357,304 2,000,000
Debt Service
Principal 1,236,926 - 1,236,926 -
Interest 53,328 - 33,328 -
Total Expenditures 11,479,892 923.921 12,403,813 11,056,158
Excess of revenues over
(urder) expenditures 307,610 (923,710) (416,100} -
Other financing
sources (uses)
Transfers 982,808 - 982,808 -
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues and other
financing sources over
(under) other financing uses $ 1,490,418 3 (923,710 % 366,708 5 -
FUND BALANCE
Beginning 1,490,418
Ending 3 366,708
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST II CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash i 2,663,521 § 2,317,914
Intergovernmenial receivable 461,683 497,309
BDue from other funds 88,000 88,000
Total Assets $ 3,213,204 $ 2,903,223
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE _
Liabhilities
Accounts payable 3 - $ -
Due to other funds - _
Total Liabilities - -
Fund Balance
Restricted for capital outlay 3,213,204 2,903,223
Total Fuad Balance 3,213,204 2,903,223
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3,213,204 3 2,903,223
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST IT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - FROM INCEPTION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
PRIOR CURRENT TOTAL TO PROJECT
YEARS YEAR DATE AUTHORIZATION
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ - 8,735,043 $ 2,838,060 $ 11,593,103 $ 16,027,928
Interest 6,588 2,109 8,697 -
Total Revenues 8,741,631 2,860,169 11,601,800 16,027,928
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay -
Road, Streets and Bridges 639,359 413,395 1,052,754 2,083,631
Public Safety Facilities and Equipment 329,634 - 329,634 6,411,172
Recreational Facitities 1,145,743 527,346 1,673,089 5,930,332
Administrative Facilitics - - - 1,602,793
Debt Service - Public Safety
Principal 2,410,465 1,510,462 3,920,927 -
Interest 322,899 98,985 421,884 -
Total Expenditures 4,848,100 2,550,188 7,398,288 16,027,928
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures 3,893,531 309,981 4,203,512 -
Other financing
sources {uses)
Transfers (990,308) - (990,308) -
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues and other
financing sources over
(under) other financing uses b 2,903,223 309,981 $ 3,213,204 $ -
FUND BALANCE
Beginning 2,803,223
Ending $ 3,213,204
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
2013 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash $ 121,797 3 109,943
Receivables (net of reserve for doubtful accounts of $107,800 in 2013
and $100,000 in 2012)
Trade accounts 97,317 108,748
Unbilled sales 114,524 113,810
Total Current Assets 333,638 332,501
Property, plant and equipment:
Buildings 577,673 577,673
Machinery and equipment 227,846 227,846
Vehicles 21,118 21,118
Land improvements 1,188,251 1,188,251
2,014,888 2,014,838
Less accumulated depreciation {691,329 {632,949)
1,323,559 1,381,939
Total Assets 1,657,197 1,714,440
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 294 447 299,536
Customer deposits 7,222 5,808
Accrued liabilities -
Payroll 6,452 8,520
Total current liabilities (payable from current assets) 308,121 313,864
Long-term obligations - -
Total Liabilities 308,121 313,864
NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets 1,323,559 1,381,939
Unrestricted 25,517 18,637
Total Net Position $  1,349.076 k) 1,400,576
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CITY OF SNELLVYILLE, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:
Solid waste
Recycling
Penalties
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Solid waste operations -
Purchases of product/service
Salaries and benefits
Coniracted / purchased services
Bad debt expense

Recycling operations -
Salaries and bensfits
Contracted / purchased services
Supplies
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES):

Interest revenue

Net income (loss) before transfers
and capital confributions

Transfers in
Capital contributions

NET INCOME
NET POSITION - BEGINNING

NET POSITION - ENDING
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2013 2012
$ 1,407,765 $ 1,349,220
104,618 135,586
24,873 19,306
5,063 5,090
1,542,319 1,509,202
1,784,998 1,723,503
32,836 37,989
12,448 5,025
7,800 15,000
95,267 98,855
69,945 66,185
7,651 15,098
58,379 58,379
2,069,324 2,020,034
(527,005) (510,832)
95 87
(526,910) (510,745
475,410 509,862
(51,500) (883)
1,400,576 1,401,459
$ 1,349,076 $ 1,400,576




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Transfers

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Non-capital Financing
Activities

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Purchase and construction of capital assets

Net Cash Provided by (Used in}
Capital Financing Activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and cash equivalents - End of Year

$

(463,652)

475,410

475,410

109,943

$
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2013

1,554,450
(1,913,123)
(104,979)

96

96

11,854

121,797

2012

(107,315)

(652,525)

509,862

11,485,223
(2,030,433)

87

87

509,862

(142,576)

252,519

109,943




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND - CONTINUED

Reconciliation of Net Income to Net Cash Provided
By Operating Activities

2013
Operating income (loss) ) (527,005)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 58,379
(Increase) decrease in receivables 10,717
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable (5,089)
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 1,414
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (2,068)
Total Adjustments 63,353
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (463,652}
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2012

$ (510,832)

58,379
(20,145)
(173,351)
(3,834)
(2,742)
(141,693)

$ (652,525)




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash
Receivables
Trade accounts
Due from other funds
Prepaid tax billing fees

Total Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Infrastructire
Equipment

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Net Property, Plant and Equipment

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses -
Salartes
Interest
Due-to other fiunds
Capital lease payable

Total Current Liabilities
Long-term Obligations

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013

b 917,342

13,312

930,654

829,663

228,089

(38,219)
1,019,533

1,950,187

22,664

1,345
603
88,805
53,114

166,531
109,726

276,257

856,693
817,237

B 1673930
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2012

$

818,305

23,829
283

842,417

532,464

(12,383)
520,081

1,362,498

9,020

9,020

520,081

833,397

: 1,353,478




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:
Stormwater utility fees
Penalties
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and benefits
Contracted / purchased services

Supplies
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (L.oss)

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES):

Interest revenue
Interest expense

Net income (loss) before transfers
and capital contributions

Transfers

NET INCOME

NET POSITION - BEGINNING

NET POSITION - ENDING

2013 2012
$ 536259 $ 533491
7,446 5,412
543705 538,903
91,578 -
102,942 120,097
2,960 -
25,836 8,958
223,316 129,055
320,389 409,848
666 536
(603) .
320,452 410,384
320,452 410,384
1,353,478 943,094
$ 1,673,930 $ 1,353,478
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and users 5 554,222
Cash paid to suppliers (113,904)
Cash paid to employees (68,587)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 371,731
Cash flows from investing activities;
Interest received 660
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 666
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 89,088
Transfers ,
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Non-capital Financing
Activities 89,088
Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Proceeds from debt issue 219,504
Principal payments (56,664)
Purchase and construction of capital assets (525,288)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
Capital Financing Activities (362,448)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 99,037
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of Year 818,305

Cash and cash equivalents - End of Year $

77

917,342

2012

$ 540,553
(121,356)
419,197

48)

(48)

(210,841)

(210,841)

208,844

609,461 "

818,305




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND - CONTINUED

Reconciliation of Net Income to Net Cash Provided

By Operating Activities

20i3
Operating income (loss) $ 320,389
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operaling activities:
Depreciation and amortization 25,836
{Increase) decrease in receivables 10,517
{Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 13,644
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits -
Increase {decrease) in accrued liabilities 1,345
Total Adjustments 51,342
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activiiies b 371,731
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2012

409,848

8,958
1,650

(1,259)

9,349

419,197




SNELLVILLE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31,2012 AND 2011

2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash b3 35,682 5 35,802
Investment 59,462 59,166
Due from primary government - long term 642,889 679,621
Total Assets 3 738,033 $ 774,589
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ -
Total Liabilities - -
Fund halance
Nonspendable -
Long-term portion of amount due from primary government 642,889 679,621
Unrestricted 95,144 94,968
Total Fund Balance 738,033 774,589
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance § 738,033 $ 774,589
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SNELLVILLE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

2012 2011
REVENUES
Confributions $ - -
Interest 23,700 13,029
Total Revenues 23,700 13,029
EXPENDITURES
Current-
Consultant - 7,603
Promotion - 5,000
Training 215 -
Capital-
Land purchase - 697,450
Debt service -
Principal 36,732 17,829
Interest 23,309 12,191
Total Expenditures 60,256 740,073
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (36,556) (727,044)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from debt issuance - 697,450
Sale of capital assets - 697,450
Net change in fund balance (36,556) 667,836
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 774,589 106,733
774,589

Fund Balance - End of Year h 738,033
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